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PUBLIC POLICY 
OBJECTIVES

In line with international best practice, the Deposit 
Protection Corporation (DPC) aims at meeting a 
number of objectives which include the following:

• Protecting depositors by providing an orderly 
means of compensation in the event of failure 
of a member institution.

• Contributing towards the stability and public 
confidence in the country’s financial system.

• Enhancing competition between different 
sectors and institutions in Zimbabwe’s 
financial system.

• Promoting sound business practices in 
contributory institutions.

• Protecting the Deposit Protection Fund 
against loss.

• Participating in problem bank resolution 
- involves managing and resolving 
failed contributory institutions including 
investigations, judicial management and 
liquidation of failed banks.

VISION 

To be the center of excellence in deposit protection.

MISSION 

We strive to promote and contribute to public 
confidence in the stability of the nation’s financial 
system by:

• protecting deposits; and
• promoting sound business practices. 

CORPORATE VALUES

• Accountability
• Fairness
• Teaming
• Integrity
• Excellence
• Transparency

CPD
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MESSAGE FROM THE 
CHAIRMAN

Dr. S. Mahlahla

It gives me great pleasure to present the tenth Annual 
Report and Statement of Accounts of the Deposit 
Protection Corporation (DPC) for the twelve months to 31 
December 2015, the highlights of which are summarised 
below. The rest of the report will highlight major activities 
of the Board during the review period.

The DPC is a statutory body which derives its mandate 
from the Deposit Protection Act [Chapter 24:29] enacted 
in March 2012. The Corporation was until the enactment 
of the new Act previously known as the Deposit Protection 
Board (DPB) and started operations on 1 July 2003. It 
was previously governed by Section XII of the Banking 
Act [Chapter 24:20] as well as the Banking (Deposit 
Protection) Regulations Statutory Instrument 29 of 
2003.  Its main purpose is to build depositor confidence 
and foster stability in the country’s banking industry, a 
function which complements efforts by the Reserve Bank 
of Zimbabwe and the Ministry of Finance. 

The banking sector had most of its secured but non-
performing loans transferred to Zimbabwe Asset 
Management Company (ZAMCO). Two banks namely 
Allied and Afrasia voluntarily surrendered their licenses 
to the Central Bank due to viability challenges and 
inability to raise the regulatory minimum capital levels. 
The licenses were subsequently cancelled. The structure 
of bank deposits remained skewed towards demand and 
short-term thereby inhibiting long-term funding to the 
productive sectors of the economy. The insured deposit 
growth was marginal at 2.6% from $4 billion as at 31 
December 2014 to $4.1 billion at 31 December 2015.

The financial performance of the DPC was positively 
affected by the reversal of the provision of protection 
payments amounting to $1.5 million and increases 
in premium and other income. Mrs M. Takavarasha 
resigned from the board during the year. There were 
no other changes to the Board of Directors of the DPC 

MAJOR HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS for the 12 months ended 31 December 
2015.

2015 2014

US$ US$

Total Income 9 002 888 8 332 437

Provision for 
protection 
payments

(1 472 585) 8 433 943

Cost to income 
ratio

32% 36%

Surplus/(deficit) 
for the year

7 313 205 (4 810 662)

Total assets 20 302 952 16 430 102

Accumulated 
Surplus

14 498 058 7 184 853

during the review period. 

Finally, let me take this opportunity to commend the 
Board of Directors, management and staff of the DPC 
for their loyalty and dedication to duty without which the 
achievements recorded during the period under review 
would not have been possible. I wish them success in 
their endeavours to meet their goals during the coming 
year.

Dr. S. Mahlahla
ACTING CHAIRMAN
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As a result, total assessed premium income increased 
from by 2.6% to $7.8 million in 2015. The cover level 
remained at $500 but there are plans to increase it to 
$1 000 in 2016. At the end of the year, the accumulated 
surplus stood at $14.5 million compared to $7.2 million 
in 2014.
 
I wish to attribute the success of the DPC achieved during 
the review period to the continued support we received 
from all stakeholders involved notably, Government, the 
Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, contributory institutions, 
depositors at large and the International Association of 
Deposit Insurers (IADI).

I also want to thank the DPC staff, management and 
the Board of Directors for a sterling job in keeping the 
organization on track towards the achievement of its 
objectives.

John M. Chikura
CEO/MD

MESSAGE FROM THE 
CEO/MD

Mr. J. M. Chikura

The macro-economic environment remained stressed 
characterised by a slowdown in economic growth arising 
from the high external debt overhang which has affected 
the country’s ability to unlock fresh investments and 
capital. 

The Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) cancelled the 
operating licenses of Allied Bank and AfrAsia Bank 
Limited on 8 January 2015 and 24 February 2015 
respectively, resulting in the number of operating 
contributory institutions insured by the Deposit Protection 
Corporation (DPC) declining from 20 to 18. The banking 
licenses of the two institutions were cancelled after they 
were voluntarily surrendered to the Central Bank, due to 
viability challenges and inability to meet the regulatory 
minimum capital requirements.

During the year, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe licensed 
four contributory institutions of which three (3) are deposit-
taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs) and a Building 
Society. The licensed deposit-taking microfinance 
institutions are GetBucks Financial Services Limited, 
African Century Limited and Collarhedge Finance 
(Pvt) Ltd. In terms of Section 35 of the Microfinance 
Act [Chapter 24:29], the three institutions automatically 
became members to the Deposit Protection Fund. 
National Building Society, that is owned by the National 
Social Security Authority (NSSA) was also licensed in 
2015, in terms of the Building Societies Act [Chapter 
24:21] and automatically became a contributory 
institution as provided under Section 23 (1b) of the DPC 
Act [Chapter 24:29].

The premium rate remained at 0.20% per annum and 
deposits eligible for premium assessments grew by 2.5% 
from $4 billion as at end of December 2014 to $4.1 billion 
as at 31 December 2015.       
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1. Membership and Scope of Coverage
• The Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ) cancelled the operating licenses of Allied Bank and AfrAsia Bank Limited 

on 8 January 2015 and 24 February 2015 respectively, resulting in the number of operating contributory institutions 
insured by the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) declining from 20 to 18. 

• The banking licenses of the two institutions were cancelled after they were voluntarily surrendered to the Central 
Bank, due to viability challenges and inability to meet the regulatory minimum capital requirements.

• During the year, the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe licensed four contributory institutions of which three (3) are 
deposit-taking Microfinance Institutions (DTMFIs) and a Building Society. The licensed deposit-taking microfinance 
institutions are GetBucks Financial Services Limited, African Century Limited and Collarhedge Finance (Pvt) 
Ltd. In terms of Section 35 of the Microfinance Act [Chapter 24:29], the three institutions automatically became 
members to the Deposit Protection Fund.

• National Building Society, that is owned by the National Social Security Authority (NSSA) was also licensed in 
2015, in terms of the Building Societies Act [Chapter 24:21] and automatically became a contributory institution 
as provided under Section 23 (1b) of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29].

2. Deposit Protection Funding
• During the year, Deposit Protection Corporation’s operations were largely financed by premiums levied from 

member institutions comprised of all deposit-taking institutions registered in terms of the Banking Act [Chapter 
24:20] and the Building Societies Act [Chapter 24:02].

• Other funding sources included earnings from investments and funds levied as penalties from defaulting member 
institutions. A flat rate premium assessment system was used to determine the insurance premiums payable by 
each member institution. 

• The flat premium rate remained at 0.2% of an institution’s annual average deposits, payable quarterly. 
• Total assessed premium income increased by 2.6% from $7.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to 

$7.8 million for comparative period in 2015. 
• The funding needs of the Corporation are aimed at paying deposit compensation claims in the event of a bank 

failure,  build a reserve fund from which future deposit compensation claims will be paid and meet its day-to-day 
operating expenses. 

3. Deposit Protection Cover Level
• During the year, the maximum Deposit Protection cover per depositor per contributory institution remained 

pegged at US$500. 
• The number of depositors covered in full and partially at the cover level of US$500 are shown in Table 1 overleaf:

Operations During the Year
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December 
2014

% December 
2015

%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts 1 479 241 100% 1 405 973 100%

Total Number of Deposit Accounts Fully Covered. 1 307 649 88.4% 1 239 515 88.2%
Total Number of Deposit Accounts Partially 
Covered.

171 592 11.6% 166 458 11.8%

Value of Deposits in Fully Covered Accounts US$56.6 million 1.4% US$51.8 million 1.3%
Value of Deposits in Partially Covered Accounts. US$3.8 billion 98.6% US$4.0 billion 98.7%
Total Value of Insured Deposits US$139.8 million 3.6% US$134.8 million 3.3%
Total Value of Deposits US$4 billion 100% US$4.1 billion 100%

Table 1: Deposit Protection Cover as at 31 December 2015

• As at 31 December 2015, 88.2% of the depositors at member institutions were covered in full with deposits valued 
at $51.8 million. The total number of depositor accounts declined by 5% from 1,479 241 as at 31 December 2014 
to 1,405,973 as at 31 December 2015. The decline in the total number of the depositor accounts in 2015 was 
mainly due to the closure of dormant accounts in some institutions in the last quarter of the year as well as the 
closure of AfrAsia Bank and Allied Bank by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe (RBZ).

4. Deposit Growth
• Total deposits eligible for DPC premium assessment marginally increased by 2.5% from $4 billion as at 31 

December 2014 to $4.1 billion. The insignificant growth in both the total deposits eligible for premium assessment 
and the banking sector’s total deposit base is hamstrung by the prevailing macroeconomic challenges which 
include industry capacity under-utilisation, closure of companies and limited foreign direct investments. Further, 
the sector has not been able to attract and instil meaningful confidence in the general public.

• Figure 1 below shows the banking sector’s quarterly trend of deposits from January 2014 to December 2015.
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Year 2014 2015

No. of Institutions 17 13
No. of Accounts 1 154 052 1 094 558
Total Deposits ($m) 3 188.2 3 130.9
Average Deposit Size ($) 2 763 2 860

No. of Institutions 4 4
No. of Accounts 321 345 307 653
Total Deposits($m) 710.2 887.1
Average Deposit Size ($) 2 210 2 883

No. of institutions 1 1
No. of Accounts 4 232 3 762
Total Deposits ($m) 68.1 56.6
Average Deposit Size ($) 16 096 15 052

No. of institutions 22 18
No. of Accounts 1 479 629 1 405 973
Total Deposits ($m) 3 966.5 4 075
Average Deposit Size ($) 2 616 2 898

Commercial

Building Societies

Merchant

Market Aggregate

Figure 2: Comparative Market Share of Deposits by Sub-Sectors

5. Distribution and Average Deposit Sizes
• The improvement in the average deposit size for commercial banks during the year was largely due to a decline 

in the number of depositor accounts (denominator) following the closure of dormant accounts with zero balances 
by most banks during the year.

• Table 2 below shows the distribution and average size of deposits by sector as at 31 December 2015.

        Table 2: Distribution and Average size of Deposits by Sector As at 31 December 2015

6. Sectoral Distribution of Deposits
• The banking sector’s deposits were concentrated in the commercial banking sub-sector as reflected by its market 

share of 76.8%, a marginal decline from 80.4% recorded as at 31 December 2014. The building society sub-
sector improved its market share by about 4% at the expense of the commercial banking subsector.

• Figure 2 below shows deposit market share by sub-sector as at 31 December 2015.
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7. Deposit Composition
• Demand deposits which are generally transitory in nature and volatile amounted to $2.2 billion, representing 53% 

of the total deposit base. Figure 3 below illustrates the composition of deposits at member institutions as at 31 
December 2015. 

• Time and savings deposits accounted for 35% and 8% respectively of the total deposits during the year under 
review. High bank charges and near zero interest rates on deposits remained the key obstacles to the attainment 
of quality savings during the year under review.

8. Bank Resolution, Recoveries & Investigations
• Notwithstanding the best supervisory efforts, banks can and do fail, hence effective bank insolvency regime is 

critical for stability. Critical elements of an effective resolution and exit regime include: early intervention before 
insolvency; speed of intervention/resolution; ability to restructure or merge a banks’ operations; effective write-
down of shareholding; create bridge banks; and open bank assistance. Should the various bank resolution 
methods fail to restore an institution’s going concern status, or merger is unattractive to potential investors, and 
there are no systemic considerations, the institution is closed and liquidated as a last resort; and a deposit pay-
out is carried out. 

• Since the global financial crisis (GFC), deposit insurance has emerged as an important part of financial safety 
net in arresting panic reaction and restoring public confidence in banking systems. In particular, there is growing 
consensus that the deposit insurer has more appropriate incentives for deciding resolution options. During the 
review period, the failure resolution options utilized by DPC included depositor reimbursements, liquidations, 
judicial management and implementation of schemes of arrangement which involved the conversion of debt to 
equity.

• The table overleaf summarizes the status of banks under resolution as at 31 December 2015.

Demand, 53%

Time, 35%

Savings, 8%
NCDs, 2%BAs, 1%

Other, 1%

Composition of Deposits as at 31 December 2015
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Deposit Insurance Payments
• One of the key functions of the Corporation is to pay compensation to depositors in the event of insolvency of 

a contributory institution in terms of section 5(c) of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act [Chapter 24:29]. In 
pursuance of its mandate, as at 31 December 2015, the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) had compensated 
depositors of nine failed banking institutions, which were subjected to liquidation. The compensation of depositors 
of three institutions, namely, Century Discount House (CDH), Rapid Discount House (RDH) and Sagit Finance 
House (SFH) was done during the Zimbabwe dollar era from 2004 to 2006 whilst six institutions were closed after 
dollarization between July 2012 and December 2015. The table below provides a synopsis of deposit insurance 
payments in respect of the failed contributory institutions:

INSTITUTON Status Date of 
placement/ 
Provisional 
Liquidation/ 

Judicial 
Management 

Total 
Assets 

total 
liabilities 

Net 
Liability 
Position 

Total 
 recoveries  

value of 
preferred 

claims 

payments 
to preferred 

creditors 

dividend paid 
to concurrent 

creditors 

estimated 
dividend to 
concurrent 
creditors 

  

GENESIS 
BANK 

In Final 
Liquidation 

4-Jul-12 $2.2 m $5.1 m ($3.9 m) $490,637  $170,178 $162,456 $150,000 $0.06 per dollar 

ROYAL 
BANK 

In Final 
Liquidation 20-Feb-13 $5.3 m $12.6m ($7.3 m) $2.1 m $2.11 m $556,886 Nil $0.07 per dollar 

TRUST 
BANK 

Under 
Provisional 
Liquidation 

08-Oct-14 $13  m $26.7 m ($13.7m) $3.3 m $3.54 m NIL NIL TBA 

INTERFIN 
BANK 

In Final 
Liquidation 28-Jan-15 $24.3 m $144.2 m ($119.9 m) $1.99m $2.36 m NIL NIL $0.13 per dollar 

ALLIED 
BANK 

In Final 
Liquidation 4-Feb-15 $9.5 m $34.5 m ($24.9 m) $0.77m $3.13 m NIL NIL $0.06 per dollar 

AFRASIA 
BANK 

In Final 
Liquidation 

18-Mar-15 $39.1 m $59.20 m ($20.09 m) $2.8m $5.8m NIL NIL $0.40-$0.50 per 
dollar 

Tetrad 
In Provisional 
Judicial 
Management 

29-01-15 $46.02 m $66.3 m ($20.27 m) $12.3 m $0.80m N/A N/A $0.22 per dollar 

 

Bank Date Total Insured Insured % of Total # of # of % Bal 

Name Closed Deposits Deposits Value Depositors Depositors Depositors Of unpaid

(Value) Paid Paid Paid Paid depositors

(Value)

RDH 26.3.04 Z$182,847 Z$83,287 45% 1,215 472 39% 743

SFH 02.3.06 Z$12,2 million Z$11,5 million 94% 3,003 2,832 94% 171

SUB-TOTAL

Royal Bank 27.7.12 US$472,206 US$353,180 75% 5,453 3,089 56% 2,364

Genesis Bank 11.6.12 US$11,800 US$8,031 68% 85 56 66% 29

Trust Bank 6.12.13 US$328,516 US$122,279 37% 2,958 347 12% 2,611

Interfin Bank 31.12.14 US$918,814 US$233,219 25% 13,021 585 4% 12,436

Allied Bank 08.01.15 US$1,248,307 US$505,409 40% 9,228 1,435 15% 7,793

AfrAsia 24.02.15 US$3,439,276 $1,878,064 54% 24,163 5,603 23% 18,560

SUB-TOTAL US$6,418,930 US$3,439,276 54% 54,909 11,155 20% 43,754

1,133

TOTAL 59,524 14,637 44,887

178 45% 219

Z$12,5 million Z$11,6 million 92.80% 4,615 3,482 75%

CDH 02.1.04 Z$63,266 Z$33,900 54% 397

Status of Banks under Resolution as at 31 December 2015
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• During the review period, DPC reimbursed a total of 11,155 depositors of Genesis Bank, Royal Bank, Trust Bank, 
Allied Bank, Interfin Bank and AfrAsia Bank a total amount of $3.4 million. A total amount of $ US$6,418,930 is 
payable if all depositors of the failed contributory institutions duly file their claims. Compensation to depositors 
of these six banks is still in progress. Depositors have been paid using bank transfer, cash or through mobile 
platforms like Ecocash and Telecash. The mobile platforms have been very popular with most of our depositors 
who reside in remote areas.

Response Rate
• Since DPC’s inception in 2003, a total of 14,637 out of 59,524 depositors of closed banking institutions have 

benefitted from the deposit protection scheme. In other words, 25% of the eligible depositors have lodged their 
claims with DPC. One of the major hindrances in contacting depositors has been the poor quality of depositor 
records at banks such that the contact details like addresses, phone numbers and e-mails are not up to date. This 
is a major challenge which negatively affects the response rate.

• Furthermore, most depositors with small balances are reluctant to submit their claims whilst some corporates 
with balances above the insurable amount would rather wait for the liquidation process than submit claims for the 
maximum insurable amount of US$500.

Payout Turnaround Time
• The deposit insurance system should reimburse depositors’ insured funds promptly in order to contribute to 

financial stability. The average pay-out turnaround time for commencing depositor reimbursements from date of 
closure was 43 days whilst the average turnaround time from date of provisional liquidation was 26 days for the 
six banks under liquidation. The turnaround time is still on the high side compared to international best practice.

• During the year 2015, DPC faced challenges in accessing depositor records before a bank closure and this  
militated against attaining a shorter turnaround time. This was further compounded by the poor quality of depositor 
records at banks such that it took an inordinate long time to sort depositor data into the required format.

• In order to provide depositors with prompt access to their insured funds, the deposit insurer should: have access 
to depositors’ records at all times which includes the authority to require banks to maintain depositor information 
in a format prescribed by the deposit insurer in order to expedite insured depositor reimbursement; and the 
authority to undertake advance or preparatory examinations (e.g. on-site and independently or in conjunction 
with the supervisory authority) on the reliability of depositor records, as well as test member institution’s IT 
systems and data to ensure the capability to produce such records.

• It is critical that the deposit insurer should have access to the necessary depositor information before a bank is 
closed as this shortens the time for completing the reimbursement process and helps preserve public confidence. 
Furthermore, a deposit insurer should have access to depositor records at all times and undertake preparatory 
reviews of bank deposit liability records to ensure prompt and accurate reimbursement of insured deposits. There 
is also a risk that depositor information could be manipulated if the period between a bank closure and a deposit 
insurer’s access to depositor records is too long, thus complicating the reimbursement and liquidation process. 

• It should be noted that the impediments highlighted above also arise due to the absence of a standard depositor 
profile format with unique identifiers applicable to deposit insurers. Towards this end, one important reform that 
is being implemented in several jurisdictions is to develop a Single Customer View (SCV). A SCV is defined as 
a holistic view of all deposit accounts eligible for deposit insurance coverage for a single depositor using unique 
identifiers. It can also be defined as a consolidated, consistent, single view of an eligible claimant’s aggregate 
protected deposits with the relevant deposit taker which contains all the key information required by a deposit 
insurer to effect a pay-out.

• This service enables the integration of customer data from multiple sources into a single file, and thereby forming 
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a single view of the customer. Adoption of the SCV format by banks will also obviate the need for depositors to 
fill claim forms in order to be paid and this will ultimately reduce our pay-out turnaround time.

• DPC has already forwarded its recommendations to the regulatory authorities on the need to adopt the SCV 
concept.

LIQUIDATION OF CLOSED BANKS
• A liquidator is appointed to put to an end to the legal existence of a company, that is, to wind up its affairs 

by ascertaining and realizing its assets and applying them first to pay off creditors according to their order 
of preference; and pay the residue, if any, among shareholders of the company. In other words, a liquidator 
assumes legal control of the bank’s estate and is responsible for ascertaining, collecting and realizing all of the 
failed bank’s assets. Subject to approval of the High Court, a Liquidator determines the validity of the claims 
against the failed bank’s estate, including the claims of uninsured depositors, general creditors and shareholders. 
A liquidator becomes the sole legal representative and assumes all governance rights of the failed bank and 
powers of its shareholders, depositors, account holders, officers and directors. 

• The liquidation of a banking institution starts with the revocation of a banking institution’s license and appointment 
of a liquidator. The insured deposits are paid first by the Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC), out of the Deposit 
Protection Fund (DPF), whilst uninsured depositors, creditors and shareholders are paid via the liquidation 
process, i.e. from proceeds realized from sale of assets and debt recovery. 

• Once the Central Bank determines that a bank should be closed, DPC is appointed the Provisional Liquidator of 
the bank in terms of section 57 1(b) of the Banking Act [Chapter, 24:20] as read with section 37(3) of the DPC 
Act [Chapter 24:29]. Since the expansion of its mandate in March 2012, DPC has been appointed liquidator of 
six banking institutions which are at various stages of the liquidation process.

GENESIS INVESTMENT BANK (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 11 June 2012
• As at 31 December 2015, DPC had declared two dividends to Genesis Bank creditors. A first interim dividend of 

$90,909.10 was awarded to preferred creditors in May 2013 and in June 2014, a second dividend of $71 546.76 
was paid to preferred creditors whilst concurrent creditors got $150 000.00, or $0.06 per dollar.

• The bank has a claim of $172 852 on the RBZ and there are 10 class B shares in Afreximbank valued at 
$100,000.00 awaiting disposal. DPC is still seeking a buyer for the shares and we have requested the RBZ to 
assist us in securing a buyer. 

• Since payment of the second dividend, a total of $67 945 has been recovered from the various debtors. It is 
anticipated that a third dividend will be declared to Genesis Bank creditors before the end of 2016.

ROYAL BANK LIMITED (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 27 July 2012
• During the year under review, $244 529.00 was recovered from a loan book of about $1.4 million whilst about 

$1.86 million was realized from the disposal of the bank’s 23 immovable assets.
• The sales of five immovable properties for Royal Bank are yet to be concluded and it is anticipated that the sales 

will be concluded during the first half of 2016. DPC has held three (3) meetings for Royal Bank creditors and 
total claims valued at about $11.9 million were provisionally accepted by the Master of High Court. In the second 
meeting, the creditors  passed a resolution authorising the liquidator to conduct a forensic audit with a view to 
prosecute any parties at fault in terms of section 318 and 319 of the Companies Act [Chapter 24:03]. 

• The First Interim Liquidation and Distribution accounts for Royal Bank were approved by the Master of High 
Court on 23 December 2015. Gross receipts from loan recoveries and asset disposals amounted to $2.1 million 
whilst liquidation expenses amounted to $1.4 million leaving a balance available for distribution of $632 715.00 
to preferred creditors, namely employees.

• Main expenses were security costs $256 905; Legal and conveyancing $213 485; Liquidator’s fees $156 540; 



Protecting Your DepositsProtecting Your Deposits

DPC Annual Report 2015

- 18 -

auctioneers expenses and commission $171 318; and DPC’s subrogation claim of $354 333. The balance relates 
to post liquidation rentals and general administration expenses of $309 483. 

• CBZ, the only secured creditor was paid $208,138.41 and the balance of $208,219.28 will be paid as a concurrent 
claim. There was no dividend to concurrent or unsecured creditors from the First Liquidation and Distribution 
account.

TRUST BANK CORPORATION (In Provisional Liquidation) - Closed 6 Dec 2013
• Trust Bank Corporation (Trust Bank) was closed by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on 6 December 2013 and 

the bank was subsequently placed under Provisional Liquidation on 18 December 2013. The bank’s former 
shareholders however opposed the move. On 28 March 2014, the High Court set aside the order on account of 
some technical deficiencies stalling the liquidation process for almost six months. The bank was placed back in 
provisional liquidation on 8 October 2014, after the bank’s shareholders had withdrawn their court application 
paving the way for DPC to continue with the liquidation process. The return date for the provisional order was 
initially set at 8 April 2015.

• The return date for the new provisional order was extended to 20 May 2015 and further extended to 3 June 
2015 after a compromise arrangement between the RBZ and the former shareholders. Notwithstanding their 
understanding with the RBZ, the bank’s former shareholders filed papers on 24 June 2015 opposing final 
liquidation and DPC now await the court to set down a date for the hearing of the opposed matter.

• Debt collection is in progress and as at 31 December 2015, a total of $3.1 million had been collected from a gross 
loan book of about $18 million.

• The value of insider loans is about $1 million whilst loans to Politically Exposed Persons (PEPS) are about $610 
115. Letters of demand have been issued to all related parties and PEPS and lawyers have been engaged to 
institute legal proceedings where we have received no responses.

INTERFIN BANK (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 31 December 2014
• The curatorship period for Interfin Bank Limited expired on 31 December 2014 and DPC was subsequently 

appointed provisional liquidator of the bank on 28 January 2015 and confirmed as the final liquidator on 4 March 
2015. The RBZ determined that it was no longer feasible to resuscitate the banking institution as the curator’s 
recapitalization initiatives had not yielded any positive results.

• The bank had a gross loan book of $167.3 million and about $1.99 million had been recovered from the various 
debtors and disposal of movable assets as at 31 December 2015. Part of the recoveries amounting to about $1.3 
million were in the form of properties. The balance of related party loans was $90.602 million constituting 53% of 
the total loan book whilst the exposure to politically exposed persons amounted to $18.648 million.

• Part of the loan book amounting to $54.7 million was ceded to one creditor in terms of a security trust deed 
agreement and a security assignment agreement. DPC has sought legal advice on whether it can terminate the 
relationship in respect of payments made in terms of the trust deed and payments made directly to the creditor, 
arising out of the assignment.

• The case is now before the Courts to determine the validity of the Agreement and whether or not the creditor in 
question should be preferred. We have however agreed to work together with the representative of the creditor 
in recovering from the ceded debtors while we await the determination of the case.

• During the review period, DPC held three meetings for Interfin Bank creditors and a total of 297 claims valued 
at about $126.52 million were provisionally accepted by the Master of the High Court. The creditors passed a 
resolution authorizing the liquidator to institute legal proceedings against any parties at fault in their individual 
capacities in the event that these are found to have been reckless and /or negligent in the discharge of their 
oversight responsibilities over the bank’s activities. On the basis of the Forensic Audit Report that was done during 
curatorship, coupled with investigations that have been conducted by ourselves, we have given instructions to 
our legal counsel to prosecute the parties at fault. Another resolution was passed by creditors authorizing the 
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liquidator to accept payment by way of properties in place of cash.

ALLIED BANK (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 8 January 2015
• The RBZ cancelled Allied Bank’s licence on 8 January 2015 following a voluntary surrender of the licence by 

the banking institution. DPC was appointed the provisional liquidator of Allied Bank on 4 February 2015 and 
confirmed as the final liquidator on 4 March 2015.

• As at 31 December 2015, a total of $772,347 had been realized from debt collection, government stock and 
disposal of movable assets. The bank has a loan book of about $3.9 million and loans valued $2.2 million were 
handed over to the lawyers for collections. The bank’s exposure to politically exposed persons is $49,134.63.

• The First Meeting of Allied Bank creditors was held on 24 June 2015 and 93 claims valued $9,7 million were 
provisionally accepted whilst 15 claims valued $356,196.30 were rejected for non-appearance.

• DPC is yet to secure title deeds of six (6) immovable properties valued at about $16.7 million, which were 
pledged as capital by the major shareholder in April 2012. As at date of liquidation, the properties had not yet 
been transferred into the bank’s name. Lawyers and creditors have recommended that the liquidator insists on 
specific performance and ensure the shareholder honours its contractual obligations. DPC has since filed papers 
with the Courts demanding transfer of the properties and as at report date, the Court had not yet set a date for 
the hearing.

AFRASIA BANK Zimbabwe Limited (In Final Liquidation) - Closed 24 February 2015
• The RBZ cancelled AfrAsia Bank’s licence on 24 February 2015 after the bank’s Board had voluntarily surrendered 

its licence. Consequently, DPC was appointed provisional liquidator of AfrAsia Bank on 18 March 2015 and the 
bank was subsequently placed in final liquidation on 29 April 2015.

• During the period under review, about $2.8 million was realised from debt collections and disposal of movable 
assets. As at date of closure, the bank had a gross loan book of about $45.9 million. Insider loans amount to 
$393,879.00 whilst the bank’s exposure to politically exposed persons currently stands at $7.9 million.

• The first and second meetings of AfrAsia bank creditors were held on 31 July 2015 and 18 November 2015 
respectively. Claims valued at $60 million for 1,023 creditors were provisionally accepted by the Master of High 
Court during the two meetings. The creditors passed two resolutions authorising DPC to facilitate the disposal of 
MicroKing as a going concern to the highest bidder and also the disposal of AfrAsia Capital Management through 
a scheme of arrangement.

DISPOSAL OF MICROKING 
• MicroKing Finance Pvt Ltd (Microking), a wholly owned subsidiary of AfrAsia Bank had already generated some 

interest from potential investors before the parent company was liquidated.
• DPC flighted adverts inviting interested parties to acquire the entire shareholding in Microking. Five (5) 

organisations registered their interest and eventually the tender was awarded to the solo bidder, MicroCred, a 
French investment company, on 1 July 2015. Following results of a confirmatory due diligence by Microcred, 
the purchase consideration for MicroKing was agreed at $3.4 million. The Purchase Agreement has since been 
signed by both parties and as at report date, DPC was waiting for regulatory approval of the transaction.

AFRASIA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (ACM)
• AfrAsia Capital Management (Pvt) Ltd (ACM), another wholly owned subsidiary of AfrAsia Bank, was still 

operational as at date of closure of AfAsia bank. Preliminary investigations conducted by DPC indicated that 
ACM was insolvent due to contingent liabilities amounting about $4.3 million of unit trust funds locked up in 
AfrAsia Bank.

• The ACM management proposed a scheme of arrangement involving the conversion of debt into equity by 
investee creditors and payment of $409,000 to AfrAsia Bank in order to save the institution from liquidation. 
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• Following the approval of the scheme by AfrAsia Bank creditors on 31 July 2015, the ACM creditors overwhelmingly 
voted in favour of a scheme of arrangement on 22 September 2015 and the scheme was subsequently 
sanctioned by the High Court on 7 October 2015. DPC successfully facilitated the consummation of the scheme 
of arrangement and ACM has since appointed a new board and changed its name to Smartvest Wealth Managers.

CAPITAL BANK (Filed for Voluntary Liquidation)
• On 4 June 2014, the RBZ cancelled the registration of Capital Bank as a banking institution following Capital 

Bank’s voluntary surrender of its licence. An 18 June 2014 petition for voluntary liquidation was opposed by the 
minority shareholder and bank employees; reinforcing the need for a separate banks insolvency regime. The 
Courts are yet to set a date for the hearing.

• As at date of closure, the bank’s assets stood at $25.6 million whilst liabilities amounted to $49.9 million resulting 
in a net liability position of - $24.3 million.

JUDICIAL MANAGEMENT
• In terms of section 300(a) of the Companies Act [Chapter 24:03], the Court may grant a Judicial management 

order in respect of a company if it appears to the Court that by reason of mismanagement or for any other cause 
the company is unable to pay its debts; and that there is reasonable probability that if the company is placed 
under judicial management it will be able to pay its debts and meet its obligations and become a successful 
concern.

• Placement of a banking institution under judicial management takes the resolution of failing or failed banking 
institutions outside the ambit of the Banking Act [Chapter 24:20]. Ideally, in instances where the RBZ considers 
that a banking institution is in an unsound financial condition, the institution should be placed under curatorship 
in terms of section 53 of the Banking Act. Curatorship has special safeguards in so far as the protection of 
depositors and creditors is concerned. Such protection will not be available in an ordinary judicial management 
order. In particular, the additional powers given to the Reserve Bank and the curator in terms of sections 55 and 
56 of the Banking Act are not present in a normal judicial management process. Allowing banks to file for judicial 
management sets a bad precedence and the public perception of the regulator maybe compromised in that it 
will be seen as allowing banks to determine their own destiny and thus erode confidence in the banking system.

• This therefore calls for the establishment of a separate insolvency regime for banks in line with international best 
practice.

TETRAD INVESTMENT BANK (Under Provisional Judicial Management) - 29 January 2015
• At its own instance, Tetrad Investment Bank (Tetrad) was placed under provisional judicial management on 29 

January 2015 and the return date was initially extended from 7 May 2015 to 6 August 2015, before being further 
extended to 1 October 2015. 

• The Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) was subsequently appointed the Provisional Judicial Manager (PJM) 
of Tetrad with effect from 1 July 2015 following the resignation of the previous Judicial Manager, Mr. Winsley 
Militala of Petwin Executor & Trust Company. The appointment of DPC was in terms of section 57 of the Banking 
Act [Chapter 24:20], whilst the appointment of the previous judicial manager was in terms of the Companies Act 
[Chapter 24:03], outside the supervision of the Central Bank.

• DPC took over the management of the institution and assumed control over all the assets. As part of its mandate 
upon appointment, DPC produced a report to the Court as required in terms of section 303 (c) of the Companies 
Act. The report was also presented to creditors during the two creditors meeting held in September 2015 in 
Harare and Bulawayo respectively.

• The investigations established that Tetrad Investment Bank became regulatory insolvent in December 2013; 
while it became technically (accounting) insolvent in August 2014. The bank had tier 1 and capital adequacy 
ratios of -50.59% and -47.78% as at 30 June 2015, which were significantly below the regulatory minimum of 6% 
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and 12%, respectively.
• As part of the capital raising initiatives, DPC, through the Bank’s board and shareholders invited all potential 

investors who had indicated interest to invest in the bank. Furthermore, DPC conducted a tender inviting potential 
investors to express interest in investing in the bank and as at report date no investor had come aboard.

• During the review period, approximately $12.3 million was recovered from the various debtors. Part of the 
recoveries amounting to about $8.6 million are in the form of properties. 

• The Second Tetrad bank creditors meeting was held on 24 and 25 September 2015 in Harare and Bulawayo 
respectively. The creditors passed a resolution authorising the PJM to proceed to implement a scheme of 
arrangement in terms of section 191 of the Companies Act [Chapter24:03], that involves the conversion of debt 
to equity by the creditors, and that TIB be put in final judicial management for a three month period to allow the 
Scheme of Arrangement as proposed above to be consummated. The High Court has since extended the return 
date for provisional judicial management indefinitely until the scheme of arrangement is finalised.

• The draft outline of the Scheme is now in place and will be finalised pending completion of the 2014 and 2015 
audit. The audited financial statements will form the basis of valuation of the bank for the purposes of the Scheme.

• It is anticipated that the audit will be finalized during the first quarter of 2016, thereafter the final Scheme document 
will be circulated to all stakeholders for views and comments before convening the Scheme meeting.

• Subject to the Scheme being approved by the creditors, an application will be made to the Court for the Court to 
sanction the Scheme of Arrangement.

DEMONETISATION OF ZIMBABWE DOLLAR - BANKS UNDER LIQUIDATION
• In the Monetary Policy Statement of January 2015, the Governor of the RBZ announced that all Zimbabwe dollar 

account balances and notes in circulation will be demonetised.
• In pursuance of the Government of Zimbabwe’s demonetisation exercise, DPC started paying demonetization 

proceeds to qualifying Zimbabwe dollar account holders for banks under liquidation, namely: Allied Bank, Interfin 
Bank and AfrAsia Bank from 1 December 2015.

• In terms of the demonetization guidelines, (Statutory Instrument 70 of 2015), any person who was a holder of a 
Zimbabwe dollar denominated account as at 31 December 2008 was to be paid using the following rates:

• Five United States dollars for every account that was held with a balance of zero up to one hundred and seventy 
five quadrillion Zimbabwe dollars;

• For any Zimbabwe dollar balances above one hundred and seventy five quadrillion Zimbabwe dollars at the rate 
of one United States dollar to thirty five quadrillion Zimbabwe dollars.

• Only holders of active deposit/savings accounts as at 31 December 2008 were eligible for payment whilst holders 
of investment accounts were not eligible for payment in terms of the demonetization guidelines.

• The demonetisation exercise for banks under liquidation was scheduled to run up to 30 April 2016. A total 
of US$784,471.00 was availed by RBZ for the demonetization exercise for banks under liquidation. The 
demonetization exercise formed part of measures implemented by government in order to bring closure to those 
depositors who lost their Zimbabwe dollar balances when government switched to the multi-currency system in 
2009.
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LEGAL & CORPORATE AFFAIRS
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Corporation recognizes and subscribes to the principles of good corporate governance whose hallmarks 
entail integrity, transparency, accountability, fairness and excellence. The Corporation continually benchmarks its 
governance policies and procedures against the IADI Core Principles for Effective Deposit Insurance Systems (Core 
Principles), which are the guiding principles for deposit insurance systems.   The Corporation continues to apply high 
corporate governance standards as enshrined in the National Code on Corporate Governance Zimbabwe, aimed 
at ensuring that depositors and stakeholder expectations are met as well as ensuring on-going sustainability of the 
Corporation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FINANCE & AUDIT 
COMMITTEE

HUMAN RESOURCES 
COMMITTEE

FIG 1: GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
This is the main decision making body, setting the strategic direction of the Corporation and ensuring that the 
Corporation manages risk effectively. The overall responsibilities of the Board are as follows:

• Establishing the Corporation’s strategy
• Supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation
• Preparation and approval of the Corporation’s annual reports and accounts
• Ensures that significant business risks are identified and well managed

The Board`s commitment to effective stewardship and its overall mandate are outlined in its Charter.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors (the Board) comprised of 7 (seven) directors, four (4) representing contributory institutions, 
one (1) representing the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development, one (1) representing the Reserve Bank 
of Zimbabwe and the Chief Executive Officer. The Corporation operated throughout the year without a substantive 
Chairperson and without the other Board member whose position is still vacant. The Corporation is engaging the 
relevant stakeholders for the appointments to be finalised. The Board of Directors comprised of the following;

• Dr Stanley Mahlahla      -      Acting Chairman
• Dr Charity L. Dhliwayo   -     Board Member
• Mr Charles Nyakabau    -     Board Member
• Mrs Vimbai Nyemba       -     Board Member
• Mr John M. Chikura        -     Board Member (CEO/MD)
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REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT

The Corporation as a creature of statute, ensures maximum compliance with all the relevant legislative instruments. 
The legislative framework consists, inter alia, of the following:  Deposit Protection Act (Chapter 24:29); Deposit 
Protection Corporation Regulations, Statutory Instrument 156 of 2013; Banking Act (Chapter 24:20); Public Finance 
Management Act (Chapter 22:19); Companies Act (Chapter 24:03); Insolvency Act (Chapter 6:04) and the Labour 
Act (Chapter 28:01).

During the review period, there was an exercise to amend the Banking Act. The Corporation submitted its views on 
the amendments and the Corporation`s thrust was on the resolution framework, which would albeit enhance the 
effectiveness of the Corporation and strengthen its mandate in accordance with IADI Core Principles.                           

BOARD COMMIITTEES
The Board Committees continued to play a crucial role in the company’s governance framework, undertaking their 
work comprehensively and effectively supporting the work of the Board.
The Board established and delegated specific roles to 2 (two) Committees in terms of the Board Charter, namely 
the Finance and Audit Committee and the Human Resources Committee to aid the Board and its directors in giving 
detailed attention to specific areas of the directors’ duties and responsibilities.

ANALYSIS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES ATTENDANCE REGISTERS
The Board met three (3) times during the accounting year. The following tables show the Board meeting attendance 
register for 2015:

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Dr S Mahlahla 3 3
Dr C Dhliwayo 3 3
Mr C Nyakabau 3 3
Mr J Chikura 3 3
Mrs V. Nyemba 3 1

FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Dr C Dhliwayo 3 3
Mr C Nyakabau 3 3

NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED
Dr S Mahlahla 3 3
Dr C Dhliwayo 3 3
Mrs V. Nyemba 3 1

HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
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The Banking Amendment Bill was tabled, debated and passed in both Parliament and the Senate and now awaits the 
presidential assent before it becomes law. 

The Labour Act was amended following the Supreme Court judgement in the case of Don Nyamande and Another V. 
Zuva Petroleum where the Supreme Court held that an employer could terminate an employee’s contract on three (3) 
months’ notice. In the amendment, the common law blanket position to terminate contracts on notice was removed.
 
In terms of the new law, an employer can only terminate a contract of employment on notice under any of the 
following circumstances:

• where the employer and the employee mutually agree in writing to termination of the contract, or
• termination is pursuant to retrenchment, or 
• where the employee was engaged for a period of fixed duration or for the performance of some specific 

service, or 
• is in pursuant to an employment code

The Act now prescribes the minimum retrenchment package as well as provide some reprieve to organizations that 
allege financial incapacity and consequent inability to pay the minimum retrenchment package or at all. The new 
law was legislated retrospectively to accommodate employees whose contracts were terminated pursuant to the 
Supreme Court judgment.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
Based on the information set out in the Legal and Corporate Affairs report, the Corporation complied with the requisite 
legislative and corporate governance requirements throughout the accounting period.
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INTERNAL AUDIT
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Internal Audit played a significant role in verifying and validating whether Management met its responsibilities and if 
internal controls were being complied with. This was carried out by evaluating controls, risk management, business 
and governance processes as well as monitoring whether agreed action plans in line with recommendations for 
improvements in controls, risk management, business and governance processes were implemented. 

The Key Areas of the Board Audit Committee in 2015:
• Reviewed internal audit reports concerning the observations and advice in respect of the controls, systems 

and processes.
• Obtained an understanding of the financial reports and monitored financial information for accuracy, reliability 

as well as clarity (including its financial statements and the external auditors report).
• Considered the information provided in the Annual Report and Strategic Plan. 
• Reviewed and provided advice to the Board with respect to the annual financial statements, management’s 

discussion and analysis, the external audit report and the review of the integrity of the financial reporting 
process and internal control reports as well as Management representations; recommended the adoption of 
the principles proposed by Management, which included making the appropriate disclosures. 

• Fulfilled its responsibilities with regard to financial management oversight, including management of annual 
budgets and investments.

• Considered and recommended the Strategic Plan 2015 – 2017 that included the operating budget, financial 
projections and capital budget.

• Provided advice and support to the Board in respect of the matters relating to risks and internal control. 
• Reviewed the utilization of resources as compared to the Budgets to provide strategic and management 

oversight. The implementation of the Risk Management framework and the update on measures to mitigate 
significant risks ensures that the risk management activities remain appropriate and prudent, and that 
significant risks are managed and monitored continuously within DPC’s risk appetite.

• Reviewed the update and progress of Management’s overall performance against initiatives set out in the 
Strategic Plan as well as Management’s assessments of internal and external factors that may impact the 
performance of the Strategic Plan. 

The Board Audit Committee noted the issues raised in audit reports and the Management’s action to improve the 
systems of internal control. Otherwise, there were no major reported incidences or weaknesses or deficiencies in 
the adequacy and integrity of internal controls embedded in the Deposit Protection Corporation’s systems, policies, 
practices and processes for the period to 31st December, 2015.

The DPC Board was committed to ensuring that Management continuously takes pro-active measures to:

• Create a conducive corporate culture and environment that emphasizes accountability for control and risk 
management.

• Identify, assess and address the various risks that could hinder the achievement of the Corporation’s objectives.
• Review and monitor the entire system of internal control and address issues or problems adequately on a 

timely basis.
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      A successful public awareness program should be designed to build public confidence in the deposit insurance 
system. Additional programs may be designed to achieve complementary and supportive objectives, including 
building the credibility and authority of the deposit insurer, building visibility, enhancing public awareness of 
the benefits and limitations of the deposit insurance system, achieving stakeholder acceptance and enhancing 
stakeholder awareness.

A good public awareness program sends the right messages, educates its target audience, changes perceptions 
and behaviours and builds a positive and credible brand image for the systems and insurers, thereby enhancing 
financial stability. The public must understand how the system works so there are no expectation gaps.

-The International Association of Deposit Insurers’ Public Awareness Enhanced Guidance (2012).
”

“
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In 2015, Deposit Protection Corporation (DPC) continued to work on its communications initiatives to ensure public 
confidence in the financial system, in line with its mandate to promote financial stability and the Public Awareness 
Enhanced Guidance issued by the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) in 2012.

In order to achieve its objectives, the Corporation’s Integrated Communication Plan which is based on four strategic 
thrusts namely digital marketing; traditional marketing; events marketing and corporate social responsibility, continued 
to focus on:

• Strengthening awareness about DPC and our protection scheme amongst our targeted audiences through 
promoting better understanding of the features, benefits and limitations of Deposit Protection Scheme;

• Contributing towards public confidence and financial stability; 
• Greater financial awareness and literacy; 
• Enhancing engagement with member institutions and relevant strategic partners;
• Instilling trust in the Corporation’s role as an integral part of the financial safety net; and 
• Reinforcing consumer protection.

HIGHLIGHTS OF OUR INITIATIVES IN 2015

TRADITIONAL MARKETING (Advertising & Publicity)
A key effort in our bid to maximize the effectiveness of the DPS is to ensure the public has a solid understanding of 
the Scheme’s role and coverage. For 2015, a number of advertising campaigns in the three main languages namely 
English, Shona and Ndebele were run in the print, radio and television media as these platforms offered wider 
geographical reach and high impact. 

The objective of the campaigns was mainly to strengthen awareness of the Corporation and Deposit Protection 
Scheme; insured classes of deposits (scope of cover); membership; reimbursement updates and claims procedures 
to depositors of closed banks. The closure of three banking institutions namely Interfin, Afrasia and Allied Bank in 
2015 also heightened the need for advertising to reinforce the strategic importance of the Deposit Protection Scheme 
in contributing to public confidence and financial stability.

Print advertisements and articles
Advertorials  and  informative articles in sponsored newspaper columns were flighted on a fortnightly basis in 
selected national
and regional publications, supplements, journals
and business magazines in an effort to provide
the public with a deeper understanding         
of the Deposit Protection Scheme and
 the Corporation’s activities. 

The good rapport that exists 
with media practitioners
 also helped in the publicity of the brand through
 the publication of free, accurate and informative articles on the Deposit Protection Scheme.
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Publicity By Member Institutions
As required by law, all member institutions continued to participate in the publicity of the Deposit Protection 
Scheme through display of membership certificates in all banking 
halls, posters, brochures, membership stickers on ATMs and making 
representation in all forms of online and offline advertisements and 
marketing collaterals of their membership to the Deposit Protection 
Scheme.

DIGITAL MARKETING

Corporate website (www.dpcorp.co.zw)
Our corporate website was revamped with enhanced layout and features for greater practicality and user-
friendliness including accessibility on mobile devices. The website served as a useful reference point and provided 
comprehensive information about the Corporation, Deposit Protection Scheme, as well as latest updates, annual 
reports, downloadable forms and other useful documents were published. The website supported the Corporation’s 
outreach and communication objectives.

In order to increase website rankings, reach and engagement with our audiences, the Corporation continued to utilize 
search optimization strategies to ensure the website received good search rankings on top search engines such as 
Google. 

Social Media
During the year, DPC expanded its use of social media advertising as a low cost communications channel, as part of 
its tactics to reach urban young adults, students and the general public. The Corporation actively utilized Facebook, 
Twitter, WhatsApp and YouTube to build and sustain rapport with its stakeholders in a timely and interactive way.

Online Marketing
Highly creative and engaging online banner advertisements and notices were placed on high traffic websites such as 
online newspaper websites as part of the Corporation’s strategy to increase its awareness objectives. This form of 
advertising greatly contributed to the website traffic to the Corporation’s website.

Online Directories
Online listing in directories assisted the Corporation in search engine optimization and public access to information 
on the Corporation. Such listings were placed in popular online directories and classifieds that enjoy high client traffic.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION

                   Telephone: (04) 250900-1 / 251040-44 
Email: info@dpcorp.co.zw | Website: www.dpcorp.co.zw 

Membership Notice

This Bank is a member of the 
Deposit Protection Scheme administered by the Deposit Protection 

Corporation (DPC) in terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29].

Protecting Your Deposits

Television & Radio Interviews
Media interviews were granted on national television and radio stations with the 
Corporation’s Chief Executive Officer articulating the role of DPC on these various 
platforms. Our public information leaflets were updated and simplified for the general 
public to understand more on the protection scheme.

DPC CEO Mr John Chikura featuring in one of the television interviews on the 
national broadcaster, ZBC.
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Email & SMS Marketing
In 2015, the Corporation continued to leverage on flighting advertisements in popular email newsletters and industry 
publications such as the Monthly Financial Sector Bulletin and Herald BH24 in order to raise awareness and provide 
more information access online. In-house email marketing and text message system was also used as a direct form 
of communication in keeping our stakeholders informed with latest updates and reminders.

EVENTS MARKETING (Stakeholder Relations)
Exhibitions & Roadshows
DPC participated in seven national and regional exhibitions as part of its commitment to take ‘deposit protection’ to 
the people. These included The Zimbabwe International Trade Fair, Zimbabwe Association of Pension Funds, Harare 
Agricultural Show, Manicaland Agricultural Show, SMEs International Expo, Mashonaland West ZimAsset Expo and 
Hwange Agricultural Show. 
These value-adding exhibitions provided DPC will high 
brand visibility through display of branded materials, 
distribution of information leaflets, granting media 
interviews, advertising exposure in print, broadcast and 
electronic media and opportunities to interact with the 
public.

Workshops for Member Institutions & Media Houses
As part of our stakeholder engagement programs, workshops 
were organized for all member institutions and media 
practitioners from four regions namely Mashonaland, Manicaland, Midlands and Matabeleland. The workshops, 
which were primarily targeted at bank frontline staff and business journalists from print, broadcast and online 
media houses, were meant to engage stakeholders and increase informational awareness of DPC’s activities. As 
part of stakeholder relationship management, DPC also participated in a number of workshops and information-
sharing engagements with some of our partners such the Ministry of Finance, Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe, World 
Bank, Zimbabwe Economic Policy Analysis Research Unit (ZEPARU), Zimbabwe National Chamber of Commerce 
(ZNCC), Consumer Council of Zimbabwe (CCZ), Postal & Regulatory Authority of Zimbabwe (POTRAZ), Zimbabwe 
Association of Microfinance (ZAMFI) and media houses.

Campus Tours
Outreach workshops were also conducted for students at tertiary institutions in an effort to increase financial 
awareness and protection system. Students are 
strategic to DPC’s awareness strategy as they form 
an important body of research and forum for policy 
discussions as well as actively participate in word 
of mouth advertising to their ‘circles of influence’ 
helping in raising awareness of the Deposit Protection 
Scheme. 

DPC CEO/MD Mr John Chikura delivering a 
presentation to University students.
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The Corporation always endeavors to maximize on publicity during events such as awards dinners, cocktails 
and golf tournaments. As a way of strengthening relationships with media and industry players, the Corporation 
participated in golf tournaments hosted by the Zimbabwe Investment Authority (ZIA), Institute of Chartered 
Secretaries & Administrators in Zimbabwe (ICSAZ) and Harare Institute of Technology (HIT). The Corporation also 
leveraged on awareness through display of banners in the golf course and club pavilions.

During creditors’ meetings, the Corporation also took the opportunity to raise awareness of our brand through display 
of banners and distribution of brochures to all creditors. These initiatives greatly assisted in educating the creditors 
on our brand and operations of the Deposit Protection Scheme.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
The Corporation regards Corporate Social Responsibility as an integral and strategic part of our business operations; 
a means to make a positive contribution to our business success; forms part of our plan to continue to build trust and 
public confidence in our organization through public awareness and strong stakeholder engagement; and forms part 
of our plan to generate teamwork among employees and pride and commitment in the Corporation. 

Every employee is encouraged to actively participate in our CSR initiatives, which are focused on activities that 
contribute towards education, environmental conservation and sustainability in line with the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy. 

Education:
DPC is committed to developing a future generation of young Zimbabweans equipped with financial and business 
skills. The Corporation provides internship opportunities thus enabling students to get first-hand experience of 
the working world. The program is run on an annual basis from the pool of all national universities. Many of our 
current scholars have found the internship useful in preparing them for work life after graduation. In 2015, two 
scholars successfully pursued internship programs in Legal, Finance, Public Relations and Business Operations 
Departments where they also covered liquidation, recoveries, risk assessment and bank surveillance for a duration 
of 12 months. 

Environmental Protection
DPC also participates in activities that champion the protection of the environment within which our citizens reside. 
In that regard, the Corporation successfully participated for the second time in the 2015 Friends of the Environment 
(FOTE) sponsored walk from Bulawayo to 
Plumtree from 1-6 December. 

Staff members from DPC volunteered to join 
over 200 partners from government entities 
and the corporate world from sectors such 
as banking, insurance, mining, retail and 
manufacturing in the sponsored walk to 
help raise awareness on the importance of 
conserving and planting trees. 

Friends of the Environment (FOTE) is a non-profit organisation of like-minded individuals and corporate entities 
championing the re-greening of Zimbabwe through tree planting.  FOTE seeks to achieve the following:
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• to plant a minimum of 500 million trees by 2026.
• to establish a minimum of 100 tree seedling nurseries.
• to create employment.
• to participate in tree planting and conservation programmes.
• to promote a culture of tree planting and environmental conservation.

NATIONWIDE CONSUMER SURVEY RESULTS
As recommended in IADI’s Enhanced Guidance on Public Awareness, DPC carried out the first nationwide consumer 
survey through an independent research agency. This was meant to assess the levels of public awareness about 
DPC, the protection system and media consumption habits of the targeted audiences in an effort to help craft a 
comprehensive public awareness plan. 

A key finding from the survey was a low brand awareness index for the general population and students sitting at 
20%, legislators 12% and small to medium business owners at 22%. Awareness levels were high among media 
practitioners at 56%, Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe staff and bank employees at 91%. The survey findings informed 
us that traditional media remains a strong channel to convey messages as well as the display of DPC membership 
certificates and stickers at bank branches. Digital marketing, exhibitions, workshops and roadshows were also 
recommended as key channels to reach out to the general public and other specific audiences. 

AWARDS & ACHIEVEMENTS
In recognition of its strategic thrust to increasing publicity of DPC, protection system and compliance with international 
best practice, the Corporation and the Chief Executive Officer received the following international and local awards:

• DPC: International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI) Most 
Improved Deposit Insurer.

• DPC: SMEs International Expo Gold Medal Award for Best Services 
Marketing Organization.

• DPC CEO Mr John Chikura: Megafest Top 20 Outstanding Man in 
Business for the Year 2015 Award.

We are humbled with the recognition and the motivation given to continue 
excelling in business performance and publicity efforts.

BOARD APPROVALS
In order to comply with international best practice on governance, the Board of Directors approved the following key 
documents to assist in the administration of the Public Relations Department:

• Customer Service Charter – available for the public on the corporate website.
• Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.
• Communications Policy.

MOVING FORWARD
Going forward and based on our research findings, the Corporation will continue to review and enhance its 
communications strategies and initiatives, in order to ensure that our public awareness efforts remain effective and 
meet its key objectives and priorities. DPC is committed to increasing public awareness of the Deposit Protection 
Scheme in urban and rural areas in an effort to increase public’s knowledge on the existence and operations of the 
Deposit Protection Scheme. An informed public on the availability of the Scheme and protection of their valuable 
deposits for free will go a long way in enhancing their confidence in the financial system and ultimately fulfilling DPC’s 
objective of contributing to the stability of the financial system for the benefit of Zimbabwe’s economy and its citizens.
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MANPOWER MANAGEMENT

The Deposit Protection Corporation headcount for 2015 was 27, against a budget of 29 positions. The Corporation 
recorded one medically-induced staff turnover for the period under review and managed to retain all key personnel. 

The DPC recognises that staff are its most critical investment and resource and has thus established a comprehensive 
manpower contingency plan which seeks to increase capacity to deliver value to all its stakeholders at all material 
times. There is a conscious succession plan in place. The Corporation’s organisational structure, policies and 
procedures were updated to ensure compliance to statutory regulations, international best practices, and Core 
Principles in Deposit Protection. The Corporation’s Strategic Plan was reviewed and realigned with internal and 
external realities in order to enhance its ability to deliver on its mandate.

Industrial Relations

The industrial relations climate was conducive, cordial and positive during the period under review in spite of the 
challenging economic environment. 

The enactment of changes to the Zimbabwean Labour Act (Chapter 28:01) as passed through the Labour Amendment 
Act No. 5 of 2015 saw a great deal of apprehension on the part of the workforce. The DPC has managed to allay any 
negative fears whilst ensuring compliance with the dictates of the law.  The Labour Act is still work in progress with 
further mooted amendments and cases before the Courts, thus it is still evolving.

Further to the Government Circular / General Letter No. 7 of 2014 directive for parastatals and state owned enterprises 
to standardise performance management systems, the DPC has resolved to proactively change from the Balanced 
Score Card matrix to the Integrated Results Based Management System (RBM). The system change will entail 
structured training from accredited trainers and facilitators. The DPC will utilise this matrix to guide its priorities in 
2016 and will be compliant with the Government directive. The performance management system will also be aligned 
to the RBM system.

Manpower Development

The Corporation is a knowledge-based organisation and strives for continuous development. It has programs for 
professional development structured under the following categories:- 

1. Local specialist training 4. Overseas (regional & international) training
2. In-house training 5. Continuous professional development (CPD)

3. Online self-study 6. Multi-Skilling & Multi-Tasking
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On the international scene, the Corporation continued to benefit from global synergies through its affiliation to IADI 
and practical platforms offered by the FDIC Corporate University in USA.  Tailor-made function specific training 
initiatives meant to acquire specific professional competencies and skills were embarked upon in order to address 
identified skill gaps and build internal capacity. The DPC continued its Attachment/ Internship programs involving 
university students focusing on the Banking and Finance discipline. Manpower development is a strategic imperative 
in enhancing the effectiveness of the Deposit Protection Scheme (DPS) in Zimbabwe. 

Administrative Services
The DPC enhanced its office security systems by installing CCTV, an entrance man-trap door which incorporates 
manual and biometric access control devices. These pre-emptive measures were instituted to protect DPC visitors 
and employees during execution of their duties. 

The DPC appointed an Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Committee to provide assurance that risks impacting 
on the entity are appropriately identified and managed in order to provide oversight on the business continuity 
management processes. The DPC actively practices Occupational Health and Safety (OH&S) to promote and 
maintain a safe, healthy and conducive working environment for all its employees, contractors, and visitors. OH&S 
processes are reviewed and tested regularly and investigations conducted on any matters deviating from the norm. 

The DPC is renting a document storage facility in fulfilment of its information storage mandate for closed institutions.  
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INFORMATION & COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY
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The ICT accomplished most of the goals of the 2015 fiscal year. The organization had commitments to automate, 
integrate and interface systems for operational efficiency. The ICT function continued to prosper in providing 
technological services on secure platforms throughout the period. 

MAJOR MILESTONES
During the year, there was an upgrade of one application system and the implementation of two new systems. The 
accounting system was upgraded to the latest edition as the previous edition was no longer supported by the vendor. 
The new systems introduced included the online payment system and the electronic library system. The online 
payment system allows payments to be done directly to recipients’ account from the comfort of our offices. This has 
resulted in reduction of money transfer costs by over 90%.
 
The electronic library system was introduced to store, share and communicate information for capacity building and 
information sharing electronically. The Corporation also adopted the Zima electronic filing system to submit electronic 
returns and compute PAYE taxes. The ZIMRA system is expected to start computing withholding taxes during the 
coming fiscal year.

The Corporation also managed to interface some of its systems to reduce turnaround time and minimize operational 
risk. The robust and prompt payment systems were pivotal in stamping the relevance of the organization in the wake 
of increased depositor payments exacerbated by bank closures of AfrAsia, Trust and Allied Bank. The Corporation 
made over 6,500 payments during the period. 

During the year, the ICT also continued to pursue in-house development programs by advancing the development of 
the Liquidation System in addition to the Risk Analysis System which was developed and awaiting deployment. The 
Liquidation System will be used for bank resolution function and is expected to go live during the coming year. The 
organization already has a Claims Processing system that was also developed in-house. 

CHALLENGES
The Zimbabwean ICT Policy (2014) highlighted some of the ICT challenges facing the country as lack of affordable 
and widespread broadband infrastructure in the country, small population with internet access and the shortage 
of electricity in the country. This has had adverse effects on the development and use of ICTs. There is room for 
development in the ICT utilization and automation of some processes in the organization. The economic challenges in 
the country also resulted in some service providers closing shop and flight of ICT skills. This exposed the Corporation 
to limited choices for service delivery and sometimes compromised service delivery. The Corporation will remain 
attentive to global risks associated with technological advancements especially in the use of mobile devices which 
have high security risks and privacy breaches.   

Zimbabwe is experiencing increase in internet penetration which according to POTRAZ report (2015) was at 46.6% 
during the third quarter of 2015. The Corporation upgraded its bandwidth to improve the efficiency in business 
transactions and processes. The increased use of smart phones and advancement in networking by introduction of 
LTE can also create opportunities for the Corporation. The Corporation already made strides in the use of mobile 
phone transfers to pay out some of the depositors of closed banks. The Corporation can ride on these advancements 
in technology to promote public awareness and get feedback from the public.  There is no limit in imagination as the 
Corporation may consider development for some of its applications to be accessible via smart devices. There is also 
need to further integrate new and existing compatible applications that are in use.  
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors of the Corporation are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and preparation 
of the financial statements and related information. The Corporation’s independent external auditors, Deloitte 
& Touché, have audited the financial statements and their report appears on page 6. The external auditors are 
responsible for independently auditing and reporting on these financial statements in conformity with International 
Standards on Auditing.

The Directors are required by the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29) to maintain adequate accounting 
records and to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Corporation at the end of the financial period and of the performance and cash flows for the period.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

The Directors are responsible for the Corporation’s systems of internal control. These are designed to provide 
reasonable but not absolute assurance as to the reliability of the financial statements, and to safeguard, verify and 
maintain accountability of assets, and to prevent and detect material misstatements and losses. The systems are 
implemented and monitored by suitably trained personnel with an appropriate segregation of authority and duties. 
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these 
controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review.

The annual financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis; this has been assessed as appropriate. 
The Directors however believe that under the current economic environment a continuous assessment of the ability 
of the Corporation to continue as a going concern will be performed. Refer to note 22.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 7 to 37 were prepared under the supervision of the Finance 
Director, Mike Chingosho (B. Acc (Hons) UZ, FCIS, MBL (UNISA)) and were approved by the Board of Directors on 
17 June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:-

______________________              ____________________                   ________________
J. M. Chikura                                    S. Mahlahla                                        C. Dhliwayo
Chief Executive Officer               Acting Chairman                             Director 
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors submit their report for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the audited financial statements for the 
same period.

Nature of business

The Deposit Protection Corporation is governed by the Deposit Protection Act, (Chapter 24:29).  The Deposit 
Protection Corporation aims at meeting a number of objectives that include:

• Protecting small, less-financially sophisticated depositors by providing an orderly means of compensation in 
the event of a deposit-taking institution becoming insolvent;

• Enhancing public confidence and systemic stability by providing a framework for the resolution of failed banks;
• Enhancing competition in the financial sector by mitigating some of the competitive barriers in the deposit 

taking industry; and,
• Helping in defining the boundaries of the Government exposure and support in protecting depositors when a 

bank or the Corporation of banks fails in normal times.

Directorate

There have been no changes in the composition of the Corporation’s board. 

Auditors

The auditors, Messrs. Deloitte & Touché, have indicated their willingness to continue in office. However, reappointment 
and fixing of their remuneration for the past year will be at the discretion of the office of the Controller Auditor General 
on whose behalf the audit is performed. 

By order of the Board
V. Vuma

_____________________________
Company Secretary
Harare, Zimbabwe
17 June 2016
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF DEPOSIT PROTECTION 
CORPORATION

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Deposit Protection Corporation on pages 7 to 37, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated funds and the statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the Deposit Protection Corporation 
Act (Chapter 24:29). This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are 
reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial position of the Deposit 
Protection Corporation as at 31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Deposit 
Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the financial statements have, in all material respects, been properly prepared in compliance with the 
disclosure requirements of the Deposit Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

DELOITTE & TOUCHE
Harare, Zimbabwe
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Notes 2015

US$
2014
US$

Revenue
Premium income 7 758 445 7 569 638
Investment income 7 745 553 741 822

Other income 8 498 890 20 977
Total income 9 002 888 8 332 437

Expenses
Operating expenses 9 (2 923 074) (2 984 228)
Provision for protection payments 19 (1 472 585) (8 433 943)
Provision for doubtful debts 14 (223 078) (1 681 519)
Profit on disposal of property, plant & 
equipment

- 13 382

Finance costs 10 (16 116) (56 791)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the year 7 313 205 (4 810 662)
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income 
for the year

7 313 205 (4 810 662)

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 December 2015
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Notes

2015
US$

               2014
US$

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, vehicles and equipment                                          

12
        1 249 491         1 308 616

Current assets
Financial assets 13 14 575 270 10 706 507

Trade and other receivables 14 4 391 621 4 344 454
Cash and cash equivalents 15 86 570 70 525

------------------ ------------------
Total current assets 19 053 461 15 121 486

------------------ ------------------
Total assets 20 302 952 16 430 102
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Accumulated fund 14 498 058 7 184 853
Non-distributable reserve 138 196 138 196

------------------ ------------------
Total equity 14 636 254 7 323 049

------------------ ------------------

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 111 069 191 979
Provision for protection payments 19 4 765 251 8 781 920
Demonetisation fund 16 782 910 -
Finance lease liability 17 7 468 133 154

------------------ ------------------
Total current liabilities 5 666 698 9 107 053

Total reserves and liabilities 20 302 952 16 430 102

____________________                             _________________ _________________
J. M. Chikura
Chief Executive Officer

Dr. S. Mahlahla
Acting Chairman

Dr. C. Dhliwayo
Director
          

Harare, Zimbabwe
7 June 2016

DEPOSIT ROTECTION  CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as at 31 December 2015
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Non-
Accumulated distributable
Fund reserve Total
US$ US$ US$

Balance at 1 January 2014 11 995 515 138 196 12 133 711

Total comprehensive income for the year (4 810 662) - (4 810 662)
----------------- ----------------- -----------------

Balance at 31 December 2014 7 184 853 138 196 7 323 049

Total comprehensive loss for the year 7 313 205 - 7 313 205
----------------- ----------------- -----------------

Balance at 31 December 2015 14 498 058 138 196 14 636 254
                                                     

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUNDS for the year ended 31 December 2015
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2015 2014
Notes US$ US$

Cash flows from operating activities

Surplus/ (Deficit) for the year 7 313 205 (4 810 662)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 12 161 355 109 046
Profit on disposal of property, vehicles and equipment - (13 382)
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 16 116 56 791
Accrued interest income on investments 13 (41 945) (73 827)
Protection payments provision 19 (1 472 585) 8 433 943
Provision for doubtful debts 14 223 078 1 609 859
Impairment loss on financial assets 13 - 71 660

-------------- --------------
6 199 224 5 383 428

Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables (270 245) 2 453 833
Decrease in trade and other payables (80 910) (32 677)

  -------------- --------------
Cash generated from operations 5 848 069 7 804 584
Interest paid (16 116) (56 791)
Protection payments 19 (2 544 084) (183 691)

-------------- --------------
Net cash generated by operating activities 3 287 869 7 564 102

Cash flows from investing activities
Property, vehicles and equipment additions: expansion 12 (102 230) (393 852)
Investment in financial assets 13 (3 826 818) (7 293 006)
Proceeds from disposal of property, vehicles and equipment            - 13 384
 --------------- ---------------
Net cash used in investing activities (641 179) (7 673 474)
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of borrowings (125 686) (173 050)
Net proceeds from demonetisation fund                                               16  782 910                        -

------------- --------------
Net cash flows used in financing activities 657 224 (173 050)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16 045 (282 422)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 70 525 352 947

------------- --------------
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 15 86 570 70 525

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS for the year ended 31 December 2015
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1. General information
The Deposit Protection Corporation (the ‘Corporation’) was established by the Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe on behalf 
of the Government of Zimbabwe to lessen the impact on the public when banks, building societies and other financial 
institutions become insolvent or collapse. 

The Corporation is incorporated and domiciled in Zimbabwe.

The financial statements are expressed in the United States of America dollars (“US$”).

2. Statement of compliance 
The Corporation’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards, (IFRS) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, (IFRIC) interpretations. The 
financial statements are based on statutory records that are maintained under the historical cost convention. 

3. Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and liabilities 
that are stated at fair value. Significant details of the Corporation’s accounting policies are set out below and are 
consistent with those applied in the previous year, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Deposit 
Protection Corporation Act (Chapter 24:29).

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements
In preparing the annual financial statements in terms of IFRS, management is required to make certain estimates 
and assumptions that may materially affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported period and the related disclosures. 
The actual results often vary from these estimates due to the inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates and 
assumptions concerning future events. These estimates and judgments are based on historical experience, current 
and expected future economic conditions and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

As the estimates are reviewed on a regular basis, any changes to these accounting estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the estimate is revised, if it impacts on only the current period. If the revision of the estimate impacts 
on both the current and future periods, then the change in estimate is recognized in the current and future periods.

Critical accounting judgments
The following accounting policies have been identified as being particularly complex or involving subjective judgments 
or assessments:

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 31 December 2015
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

4.1  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Corporation’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its 
property and equipment. This estimate is based on projected product life cycle of these assets. It could change 
significantly as a result of technological innovations in response to severe industry cycles. Management will 
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will write off or 
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. The current year 
estimated useful lives were as follows:

Buildings                               20 - 40 years
Furniture and fittings                        10 years
Computers and office equipment             7 years
Vehicles                                                    5 years

4.2     Provision for protection payments 

The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the 
Deposit Protection Corporation Act.  Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the 
CAMELS rating system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed 
institutions at the end of the year. Distressed banks on the Central banks watch list with a CAMELS rating of 4 
and above were provided for except for government banks with an exposure of US$ 6 117 364 (2014: US$ 6 
196 665) as at year end. The Central Banks considers such banks to be least likely to close due to continued 
government and the Central Bank’s support. 

4.3      Provision for outstanding premiums and penalties

During the year, the Corporation’s management considered the recoverability of outstanding premiums 
from troubled banks. The provision is based on the balances outstanding at year end. Management has 
determined that the recoverability of the amounts from troubled banks is uncertain, thus the amounts have 
been provided for in full except for a certain troubled bank and a bank under judicial management from 
which the Corporation has alternative recovery plans in place and has been receiving monthly payments 
subsequent to year end respectively. 

Full provision has been made on penalties charged on late payment of premiums in 2013 which the banks 
have been disputing. The implementation of the recovery plan has been protracted, however management is 
continuously engaging concerned parties to recover the amounts.
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4.4     Recognition of subrogation fees

In terms of the DPC Act  [Chapter 24:29] Section 46, the Corporation shall be subrogated up to the amount 
paid to depositors of failed banks. The timing of the refund is dependent on the availability of cash from 
disposals of failed bank(s) assets and recoveries from the failed bank(s) debtors. The process can be 
protracted. In view of this timing uncertainty, subrogated income is not accrued but recognized on date of 
receipt. During the year subrogation income was recognized when the Corporation had an irrevocable right 
to receive funds during with considerable certainty. 

4.5     Recognition of premium from troubled banks
          

The DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 28 provides that all contributory institutions including those under 
judicial management and curatorship are liable to contribute to the DPC Fund.  Management assesses on 
a quarterly basis the probability of recoverability of premiums from troubled banks and banks under judicial 
management and curatorship. An amount of US$ 197 405 was recognized in premium income relating to 
certain troubled institutions with which management has recovery plans of the levied premiums.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5.  New accounting policies adopted

5.1 Accounting standards and interpretations adopted impacting the annual financial statements
 

The Corporation did not adopt any new or revised accounting standards or interpretations in the current year 
that would have had an impact on the amounts or disclosures reported in these financial statements. 
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International 
Financial 
Reporting 
Standard

Summary of revisions and amendments

Defined Benefit 
Plans: Employee 
Contributions 
(Amendments to 
IAS 19)

(Effective Date: 1 
July 2014)

Amends the standard to clarify the requirements that relate to how 
contributions from employees or third parties that are linked to service. In 
addition, it permits a practical expedient if the amount of the contributions 
meets the requirements set out.

IFRIC12 Levies 
(Effective Date: 1 
July 2014)

Provides guidance on when to recognise a liability for a levy imposed by a 
government, both for levies that are accounted for in accordance with  IAS 
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and  those where 
the timing and amount of the levy is certain.

Annual 
Improvements 
2011- 2013 Cycle 

(Effective Date: 1 
July 2014)

Makes amendments to the following standards:
-IFRS 1 - Clarify which versions of IFRSs can be used on initial adoption 
(amends basis for conclusions only).
-IFRS 3 - Clarify that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope the accounting for 
the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial statement of the joint 
arrangement itself.
-IFRS13 - Clarify the scope of the portfolio exception in paragraph 52.
-IAS 40 - Clarifying the interrelationships of IFRS3 and IAS 40 when 
classifying property as investment property or owner - occupied property.

Annual 
Improvements 
2010- 2012 Cycle 

(Effective Date: 1 
July 2014)

Makes amendments to the following standards:
- IFRS 2 – Amends the definition of vesting option and market conditions and 
adds definition for performance condition and service condition.
- IFRS 3 - Require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a 
liability to be measured at fair value at each reporting date.
-IFRS 8 - Requires disclosure of the judgement made by management in 
applying the aggregation criteria to operating segments, clarify reconciliation 
of segment assets only required if segments are reported regularly.
-IFRS 13 - Clarify that issuing IFRS13 and amending IFRS 9 did remove 
the ability to measure certain short term receivables and payables on an 
undiscounted basis (amends basis for conclusions only).
-IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarify that the gross amount of property, plant and 
equipment is adjusted in a manner consistent with a revaluation of the carrying 
amount.
-IFRS 13 - Clarify how payments to entities providing services are to be 
disclosed.

5.2 New, revised and amended IFRSs mandatorily effective for the financial year beginning on   
            1 January 2015
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5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of the
            reporting period and not yet adopted.

International Financial 
Reporting Standard

Effective date Summary of revisions and amendments

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
(2009)

None stated IFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and 
measuring financial assets.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
(2010)

None stated A revised version of IFRS 9 incorporating revised 
requirements for the classification and measurement 
of financial liabilities, and carrying over the existing 
derecognition requirements from IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
(Hedge Accounting and 
amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS 7 
and IAS 39) (2013).

None stated A revised version of IFRS 9 that:
- Introduces a new chapter to IFRS9 on hedge accounting, 
putting in place a new hedge accounting model that is 
designed to be more closely aligned with how entities 
undertake risk management activities when hedging
- Permits an entity to apply the requirements introduced 
in for the presentation of gains and losses on financial as 
at fair value through profit and loss without applying of the 
IFRS 9, meaning the portion of the change in fair value 
in the entity’s own credit risk can be presented in other 
comprehensive income rather than within profit and loss.
- Removes the mandatory effective date of IFRS 9 (2013), 
IFRS 9 (2010) and IFRS 9 (2009), leaving the effective 
date open pending of the impairment and classification 
and measurement Notwithstanding the removal of an 
effective date, each available for application*.
*IFRS 9 (2014) was issued on 24 July 2014 and 
supersedes IFRS 9 (2013) but this version of the standard 
is still available for date of initial application is before 1 
February 2015.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5. New accounting policies adopted (continued)
5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of the
            reporting period and not yet adopted (continued).

IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments (2014)

1 January 
2018

A finalised version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting financial instruments, 
replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 
The standard contains requirements in the following areas ‘- Classification 
and measurement. Financial assets are classified by reference to the 
business model within which they are held and their contractual cash flow 
characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 includes a fair value through 
comprehensive income category for certain debt instruments. The financial 
liabilities are classified in a similar manner to under IAS 39, however there 
are differences in the requirements applying to the measurement of an 
entity’s own credit risk.
- Impairment. The 2014 version of IFRS9 introduces an ‘expected credit 
loss’ model for the measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so 
it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before a credit 
loss is recognised.
- Hedge accounting. Introduces a new hedge accounting model that 
is designed to be more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk 
management activities when hedging financial and non-financial risk 
exposures
- Derecognition. The requirements for the derecognition of a liabilities are 
carried forward from IAS 39.
-Note: Depending on the chosen approach to applying IFRS 9, the transition 
can involve one or more than one date of initial application for different 
requirements.
- Note: IFRS 9 (2014) supersedes IFRS 9 (2009) IFRS 9 (2010) and IFRS 
9 2013, but these standards remain available for application if the relevant 
date of initial application is before I February 2015.

IFRS 14 Regulatory 
Deferral Accounts.

1 January 
2016

IFRS 14 permits an entity which is a first-time adopter of International 
Financial Reporting Standards to continue to account, with some limited 
changes for regulatory deferral account balances’ in previous GAAP, both 
on initial adoption of IFRS and in financial statements.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5. New accounting policies adopted (continued)
5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of the
            reporting period and not yet adopted (continued).

IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers

1 January 
2018

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to 
be applied to all contracts with customers. The five steps in the 
model are as follows: 
1. Identify the contract with the customer.
2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract.
3. Determine the transaction price.
4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations 

in the contracts.
5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a 

performance obligations. Guidance is provided on topics 
such as the point in which revenue is recognised accounting 
for variable consideration, costs of fulfilling and obtaining a 
contract and various related matters. New disclosures about 
revenue are also introduced.

Accounting for Acquisitions 
of Interests in Joint Op-
erations (Amendments to 
IFRS11)

1 January 
2016

Amends IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements to require an acquirer of 
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity constitutes a 
business (as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations) to:
-apply all of the business combinations accounting principles in 
IFRS 3 and other IFRSs, except for those principles that conflict 
with the guidance in IFRS 11.
-disclose the information required by IFRS 3 and other IFRSs for 
business combinations.
The amendments apply both to the initial acquisition of an interest 
in joint operation and the acquisition of an additional interest in a 
joint operation (in the later case) previously held interests are not 
remeasured).
Note: The amendments apply prospectively to acquisitions of 
interests in joint operations in which the activities of the joint 
operations constitute businesses as defined in IFRS 3, for those 
acquisitions occurring from the beginning of the first period in 
which the amendments apply. Amounts recognised for acquisition 
of interests in joint operations occurring in prior periods are not 
adjusted.
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Clarification 
of Acceptable 
Methods of 
Depreciation and 
Amortisation 
(Amendments to 
IAS 16 and IAS 38)

1 January 
2016

Amends IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets 
to:
-clarify that a depreciation method that is based on revenue that is generated 
by an activity that includes the use of an asset is not appropriate for plant, and 
equipment.
-introduce a rebuttable presumption that an amortisation method that is based 
on the revenue generated by an activity that includes the use of an intangible 
asset is inappropriate, which can only be overcome in limited circumstances 
where the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of the revenue, or when 
it can be demonstrated that revenue and the consumption of the economic 
benefits of the intangible asset are highly correlated.
-add guidance that expected future reductions in the selling price of an item that 
was produced using an asset could indicate the expectation of technological or 
commercial obsolescence of the asset, which, in turn, might reflect a reduction 
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset.

Equity Method in 
Separate Financial 
Statements 
(Amendments to 
IAS 27)

1 January 
2016

Amends IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements to permit investments in 
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to be optionally accounted for using 
the equity method in separate financial statements.

Sales or 
Contribution of 
Assets between 
an Investor and 
its Associate or 
Joint Venture 
(Amendments to 
IFRS 10 and IAS 
28)

1 January 
2016

Amends IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment 
in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) to clarify the treatment of the sale 
or contribution of assets from an investor to its associate or joint venture, as 
follows: 
-require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains and 
losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business 
(as defined in IFRS 3 Business Combinations).
-require the partial recognition of gains and losses where the assets do not 
constitute a business, i.e. a gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the 
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
These requirements apply regardless of the legal form of the transaction, e.g. 
whether the sale or contribution of assets occurs by an investor transferring 
shares in a subsidiary that holds the assets (resulting in of control of the 
subsidiary), or by the direct sale of the assets themselves.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5. New accounting policies adopted (continued)
5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of   
            the reporting period and not yet adopted (continued).
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Annual 
Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle

1 July 2016 Makes amendments to the following standards:
-IFRS 5- Adds specific guidance in IFRS 5 for cases in which an entity 
reclassifies an asset from held for sale to held for distribution or vice versa 
and cases in which held-for-distribution accounting is discountinued.
-IFRS 7- Additional guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is 
continuing involvement in a transferred asset, and clarification on offsetting 
disclosures in condensed interim financial statements.
-IAS 9- Clarify that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the 
discount rate for post-employment benefits should be denominated in the 
same currency as the benefits to be paid.
-IAS 34- Clarify the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the interim report’ and 
require a cross-reference.

Disclosure Initiative 
(Amendments to IAS 
1)

1 January 
2016

Amends IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to address perceived 
impediments to preparers exercising their judgement in presenting their 
financial reports by making the following changes:
-clarification that information should not be obscured by aggregating or 
by providing immaterial information, materiality considerations apply to 
all parts of the financial statements, and even when a standard requires a 
specific disclosure, materiality considerations do apply;
-clarification that the list of line items to be presented in these statements 
can be disaggregated and aggregated as relevant and additional guidance 
on subtotals in these statements and clarification that an entity’s share 
of OCI of equity- accounted associates and joint ventures should be 
presented in aggregate as single line items based on whether or not it will 
subsequently be reclassified to profit or loss;
-additional examples of possible ways of ordering the notes to clarify 
that understandability and comparability should be considered when 
determining the order of the notes and to demonstrate that the notes need 
not be presented in the order so far listed in paragraph 1.14 of IAS 1.

        

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5. New accounting policies adopted (continued)
5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of   
            the reporting period and not yet adopted (continued).
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Investment Entities Applying 
the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, 
IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

1 January 
2016

Amends IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 28  Investments 
in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) to address issues that 
have arisen in the context of applying the consolidation exception 
for investment entities by clarifying the following points:

-The exemption from preparing consolidated financial statements 
for an intermediate parent entity is available to a parent entity 
that is a subsidiary of an investment entity even if the investment 
entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value.
-A subsidiary that provides services related to the parent’s 
investment activities should not be consolidated if the subsidiary 
itself is an investment entity.
-When applying the equity method to an associate or a joint 
venture, a non-investment entity investor in an investment entity 
may retain the fair value measurement applied by the associate 
or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries.
-An investment entity measuring all of its subsidiaries at fair value 
provides the disclosures relating to investment entities required 
by IFRS 12.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

5. New accounting policies adopted (continued)
5.3 New, revised and amended IFRSs in issue but not yet mandatorily effective at the end of
            the reporting period and not yet adopted (continued).

The Directors of the Corporation have assessed the amendments and new standards and do not believe that the 
adoption of these will have a material impact on the financial results or disclosures of the Corporation.
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

6. Significant accounting policies
             The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
            Standards.       

6.1 Property, Vehicles & Equipment

Property, vehicles and equipment are initially recognized at cost price. Property, vehicles and equipment is 
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is 
provided for on the straight line method over the expected useful life of the asset. There is no depreciation provided 
for on freehold land and capital work in progress. 

Depreciation is calculated on the straight line method to allocate the cost of each asset, to their residual values over 
their estimated useful lives as follows:

            Buildings                                    20 - 40 years
 Furniture and fittings                               10 years
 Computers and office equipment                  7 years
 Vehicles                                             5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. An 
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is 
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in 
profit or loss.

Impairment
An impairment review of property, vehicles and equipment is carried out when there is an indication that these may 
be impaired by comparing the carrying amount thereof to its recoverable amount. The Corporation’s operations as a 
whole constitute the smallest cash-generating unit.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the 
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future 
cash flows have not been adjusted
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

6. Significant accounting policies (continued)

6.2 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the 
ordinary course of the Corporation’s activities. 

The Corporation recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable 
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the 
Corporation’s activities as described below. 

6.2.1 Premium income

Premium income is recognised in the accounting period in which it accrues. Premiums are received in 
arrears.

6.2.2 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method. When a 
receivable is impaired, the Corporation reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the 
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues 
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original 
effective interest rate.

6.2.3 Subrogation income

Subrogation income is recognised when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the entity and the Corporation has an irrevocable right to receive funds 
during with considerable certainty. 

6.3 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

6.4 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the 
ordinary course of business. Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due 
within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If not, they are presented 
as non-current liabilities.
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Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective interest method.

6.5 Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the 
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, 
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is 
material).
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6. Significant accounting policies
            (continued)

6.5 Provisions (continued)

6.5.1 Onerous contracts
 

Present obligations arising under onerous 
contracts are recognised and measured as 
provisions. An onerous contract is considered 
to exist where the Corporation has a contract 
under which unavoidable costs of meeting 
the obligations under the contract exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be 
received from the contract.

6.6 Leases

Assets held under a finance lease arrangement 
are capitalised as property, plant and equipment 
at the fair value of the leased asset at inception 
of the lease, or if lower, at the present value of 
minimum lease payments.  The corresponding 
liability to the lessor is included in the statement 
of financial position.

Finance lease payments are apportioned 
between finance costs and the reduction in the 
lease obligation, using the effective interest 
method. 

Operating lease payments are recognised as 
an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term, except where another systematic 
basis is more representative of the pattern in 
which economic benefits from leased assets are 
consumed. 

6.7 Taxation

  The Corporation is domiciled in Zimbabwe
. Under   the current laws of Zimbabwe there is

no income, estate, corporation, capital gains or 
other taxes payable by the Corporation. This 
is with exception of value added tax (“VAT”) 
and Corporation’s employees Pay As You Earn 
(“PAYE”) which are due and payable when 
applicable.

6.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise 
to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument in another entity. 
The Corporation’s financial instruments consist 
primarily of the following financial assets: non-
current receivables, cash and cash equivalents, 
trade and other receivables; other current financial 
assets; and the following financial liabilities: 
borrowings, trade and other payables, and certain 
derivative instruments.

Fair value
Where financial instruments are recognised at 
fair value, the instruments are measured at the 
amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or 
a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing 
parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values 
have been determined as follows:

• Where market prices are available, these 
have been used.

• Where there are no market prices available, 
fair values have been determined using 
valuation techniques incorporating 
observable market inputs or discounting 
expected cash flows at market rates.

• The fair value of the trade and other 
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and 
trade and other payables approximates their 
carrying amount due to the short maturity 
period of these instruments.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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6. Significant accounting policies
            (continued)

Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of 
calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
asset or financial liability and of allocating 
interest income or expense over the period of 
the instrument.  
Effectively, this method determines the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments or receipts through the expected life 
of the financial instrument or, if appropriate, a 
shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset or liability.

            Financial assets
The Corporation classifies financial assets into 
the following categories:

  
• At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
• Loans and receivables.
• Held-to-maturity (HTM).
• Available-for-sale (AFS).

The classification of the financial assets is 
dependent on the purpose and characteristics of 
the particular financial assets and is determined 
at the date of initial recognition. Management 
reassesses the classification of financial assets 
on a bi-annual basis.

           Financial assets at fair value through
           profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL 
when the asset is either held-for-trading or is a 
derivative 
that does not satisfy the criteria for hedge 
accounting or is designated at FVTPL.

A financial asset is designated at FVTPL on initial 
recognition if this designation provides more useful 
information because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency (i.e. an accounting 
mismatch); or

• the financial asset is part of a group of financial 
assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed 
and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis 
in accordance with a documented risk/investment 
management strategy, and information regarding this 
grouping is reported internally to key management 
on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded 
derivatives, the entire contract can be designated at 
FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are recognized at fair 
value. Any subsequent gains or losses are recognized in 
profit or loss.

Financial assets classified as held-for-trading comprise 
the foreign forward exchange contracts which are not 
designated as hedges in terms of IAS 39 – Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Loans and receivables
Financial assets that are non-derivative with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’.

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest method. Any subsequent 
impairment is included in the determination of other net 
income/expenditure.

Loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and 
cash equivalents with short-term maturities have 
been classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and 
receivables are considered as current if their maturity is 
within a year, otherwise they are reflected in non-current 
assets.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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6. Significant accounting policies  
            (continued)
6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Held-to-maturity (HTM)
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the 
Corporation has an intention and ability to hold to 
maturity are classified as held-to-maturity.

These financial assets are measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. Any subsequent 
impairment, where the carrying amount falls below the 
recoverable amount, is included in the determination of 
other net income/expenditure.

Available-for-sale (AFS)
Other non-derivative financial assets are classified as 
AFS which are initially recognised at fair value. Any 
subsequent gains or losses are recognised directly in 
other comprehensive income, unless there is objective 
evidence and the fair value has declined below cost less 
accumulated impairments. On disposal or impairment 
of the financial asset, all cumulative unrecognised gains 
or losses, which were previously reflected in equity, are 
included in profit or loss for the period.

Impairment
Financial assets that are not held-for-trading or 
designated at FVTPL are assessed for objective 
evidence of impairment at the reporting date (e.g. 
evidence that the Corporation will not be able to collect 
all the amounts due according to the original terms of 
the receivable). If such evidence exists, the impairment 
for financial assets at amortised cost is measured as 
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of these financial assets, with 
the exception of trade receivables, is reduced by the 
impairment. Trade receivables are reduced through an 
allowance account, with movements in the allowance 
account included in the determination of net income/
expenditure.
 
If a decline in fair value has been recognized in equity 
in respect of an AFS instrument and there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired, then the cumulative 
loss recognized in equity is reversed from equity and 
reflected in profit or loss even if the financial asset has 
not been derecognized. An impairment loss recognized 
on an investment in an equity instrument classified as 
AFS is not reversed through profit or loss. However, for 
any other AFS instruments, if in a subsequent period the 
fair value increases and the increase can be objectively 
linked to an event occurring after the impairment loss 
was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is 
reversed, with the reversal reflected in profit or loss.

Classification between debt and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified according to 
the substance of the contractual arrangements and the 
definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument. 

Equity instruments
An equity instrument represents a contract that 
evidences a residual interest in the net assets of 
the Corporation after deducting its liabilities. Equity 
instruments issued by the Corporation are recorded at 
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial 
liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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6. Significant accounting policies
            (continued)

6.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the 
liability is either incurred for trading or is a derivative that 
does not satisfy the criteria for hedge accounting or is 
designated at FVTPL. A financial liability is designated at 
FVTPL on initial recognition if this designation provides 
more useful information because:

• it eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement 
or recognition inconsistency (i.e. an accounting 
mismatch); or

• the financial liability forms part of a group of financial 
assets, financial liabilities or both, that is managed 
and its performance evaluated on a fair value basis 
in accordance with a documented risk/investment 
management strategy, and information regarding this 
grouping is reported internally to key management 
on this basis.

In addition, if a contract contains one or more embedded 
derivatives, the entire contract can be designated at 
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized at fair value. 
Any subsequent gains or losses are recognized in profit 
or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are recorded initially at the fair 
value of the consideration received, which is cost net of 
any issue costs associated with the borrowing. These 
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, 
using the effective interest method. Amortised cost is 
calculated taking into account any issue costs and any 
discount or premium on settlement.

Borrowings, obligations under finance leases and 
trade and other payables have been classified as other 
financial liabilities.  

Loan commitments
Loan commitments provided at below market interest 
rates are measured at initial recognition at their fair 
values and if not designated at FVTPL, are subsequently 
measured at the higher of:

• the amount of the obligation in terms of the 
contract as determined in accordance with IAS 37  
(Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 
Assets); or

• the amount initially recognised less the cumulative 
amortisation recognised in accordance with IAS 
18 – Revenue.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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6. Significant accounting policies
            (continued)

6.9 Foreign currencies

The United States dollar (US$) is the functional 
currency of the Corporation. Foreign currency 
transactions are recorded at the spot rate of 
exchange on the transaction date. At the end 
of the period, monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are translated 
at rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities carried at fair 
value are translated at the rate of exchange ruling 
at the date of determining the fair value. Non-
monetary items that are denominated in foreign 
currencies and measured at historical cost are 
not retranslated. Foreign exchange differences 
arising on monetary items are reflected in profit 
or loss except in limited circumstances.

6.10 Borrowing costs
 

Borrowing costs are charged to interest paid. 
When borrowings are utilized to fund qualifying 
capital expenditure, such borrowing costs are 
capitalized in the period in which the capital 
expenditure and related borrowing costs are 
incurred.

6.11 Employee Benefits
 
6.11.1 Short-term employee benefits

Remuneration paid to employees in respect 
of services rendered during a reporting period 
is recognized as an expense in that reporting 
period. Accruals are made for accumulated 
leave and are measured at the amount that the 
Corporation expects to pay when the leave is 
used.

6.11.2 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are charged against 
income when the Corporation is demonstrably 
committed to terminating the employment of an 
employee before their normal retirement date.

6.11.3 Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement, provident and pension fund 
contributions to defined contribution plans in 
respect of services rendered during a reporting 
period are recognised as an expense in that 
period.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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2015 2014
US$ US$

7. Investment income
Interest income:
Held to maturity investments 745 553 741 822

745 553 741 822
8. Other income

Interest on staff loans 12 488 15 429
Sundry income 826 5 548
Recoveries from subrogation 354 333 -
Liquidation fees                                                                                                                                  131 243 -

498 890 20 977
9. Operating expenses

Included in profit or loss for the year are the following 
items:
Administration expenses:
- Utilities 31 335 27 599
- Cell phone charges and internet
  services

31 837 17 162

- Other administration expenses 371 346 332 745
Staff costs (note 9.1) 2 012 844 2 104 110
Other expenses:
             - Board fees 34 120 38 200
             - Audit fees 
    Statutory audit 28 750 25 000
    Agreed upon procedures - 12 318
             - Depreciation 161 356 109 046
             - Consultancy fees 13 539 16 298
             - Foreign travel 152 975 239 518
             - Subscriptions to professional 
                organizations

17 319  19 620

             - Repairs and maintenance                                                                                             39 997 34 620
             - Liquidation expenses 27 656 7 992

2 923 074 2 984 228
9.1 Staff costs

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 1 885 242 1 978 460
National Social Security Authority cost 20 107 18 879
Pension costs 107 495 106 771

2 012 844 2 104 110

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

10. Finance costs
                                                                 2015                  2014
                                                                  US$                    US$                                                                                                  

Finance lease charges                                     16 116                 30 539
Mortgage interest                                              -                26 252
                                    -------------           -------------
                                                   16 116                56 791
                                     
      
11. Pension fund 

Contributions are made to the following funds by both employees and the Corporation:

The Deposit Protection Corporation Pension Fund. 

The pension fund to which all permanent employees and the Corporation contribute to is a defined contribution 
plan which is administered by Old Mutual Zimbabwe.  This fund is subject to the Pension and Provident Funds 
Act (Chapter 24:09). Contributions by the Corporation amount to 12% and those by employees amount to 6% of 
pensionable emoluments.

National Social Security Authority 

The Corporation and its employees contribute to the National Social Security Authority scheme. This is a social 
security scheme which was promulgated under the National Social Security Authority Act (Chapter 17:04). The 
Corporation’s obligations under the scheme are limited to specific contribution legislated from time to time.

The Corporation’s contributions to both funds were:

                                                                   2015               2014
                                                                    US$                US$
             
Pension fund                                                  107 495           106 771
National Social Security Authority             20 107               18 879
                                                           --------------         ------------
                                                               127 602           125 650
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Office Computer Furniture Land and
Year ended 31 
December 2015

Vehicles equipment equipment and fittings buildings Total

US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Cost at 1 January 2014 329 167 14 225 62 581 54 753 847 889   1 308 616
Additions   60 000 8 273 29 375 4 582 - 102 230
Depreciation charge                                                                                                           (88 766)    (7 719)  (32 387) (7 222) (25 261) (161 356)
Net book value   300 401         14 779 59 569  52 113 822 628 1 249 491

                                                                                                                                
At 31 December 2015
Cost 456 043 45 681 164 166 104 648 921 632 1 692 170
Accumulated depreciation  (155 642) (30 902) (104  597) (52 535) (99 004) (442 680)
Net book value 300 401 14 779 59 569 52 113 822 628 1 249 491

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date. Included in property, 
plant and equipment are motor vehicles with a carrying amount of $277 287 (2014: $297 523) under a finance lease 
arrangement. 

12        PROPERTY, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2014 (continued)

Office Computer Furniture Land and
Year ended 31 
December 2014

Vehicles equipment equipment and fittings buildings Total

US$ US$ US$ US$ US$ US$
Cost at 1 January 2013 37 919 12 396 55 089 47 469 870 939   1 023 812
Additions   336 402 7 780 33 488 14 031 2 151 393  852
Disposals (2) - - - - (2)
Depreciation charge                                                                                                           (45 152)  (5 951) (25 996) (6 747) (25 200) (109 046)
Net book value   329 167         14 225 62 581  54 753 847 890 1 308 616

                                                                                                                                
At 31 December 2014
Cost 396 043 37 408 134 791 100 066 921 632 1 589 939
Accumulated depreciation  (66 876) (23 183) (72 210) (45 312) (73 742) (281 323)
Net book value 329 167 14 225 62 581 54 753 847 890 1 308 616

12        PROPERTY, VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

There is no impairment of assets required from an assessment performed at the reporting date. 
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

2015 2014
US$ US$

13. Financial assets
At 1 January 10 706 507 3 411 334
Additions 3 826 818 7 293 006
Accrued interest 41 945 73 827
Impairment loss recognised                                                                                   - (71 660)
At 31 December 14 575 270 10 706 507

                                  
Analysis of financial assets:

Held to maturity investments carried at 
amortized cost
Equity funds (i) 10 916 12 328 
Bills of exchange -          71 660
Gross money market funds (iii)                                                               14 564 971 10 694 179 
Impairment loss recognised                                                                                    - (71 660)

14 575 887 10 706 507
                                 

14. Trade and other receivables
2015 2014
US$ US$

Trade receivables 5 884 226 5 655 378
Other receivables 340 332 298 935
Impairment loss recognized (1 832 937) (1 609 859)

4 391 621 4 344 454
                                 

14.1 Age of receivables that are due but not
        impaired

Receivables are as follows:
Between 31 – 90 days - 2 530
Greater than 90 days -  219 291

                        - 221 821

(i)   The Corporation holds unit trusts through Old Mutual in an Equity Fund. These have been
       measured at amortized cost at the reporting date.
(ii)   The Corporation holds unit trusts through Old Mutual in a Money Market Gross Fund. These have
       been measured at amortized cost at the reporting date.

There were no impairment allowances for the year ended 2015
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2015
US$

2014
US$

14.3 Age on impaired trade
        receivables
Less than 30 days 41 131 102 483
Between 31 – 90 days 41 978 154 175
Greater than 90 days 1 749 828 1 353 201

1 832 937 1 609 859
                                  

2015 2014
US$ US$

15. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2 173 2 332
Cash at bank 84 397 68 193

86 570 70 525

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

14. Trade and other receivables (continued)

     2015
US$

 2014
US$

14.2 Movement in allowance for doubtful 
        debts
Balance at the beginning of the year                                                        1 609 859 -
Impairment losses recognized 223 078 1 609 859
Balance at the end of the year 1 832 937 1 609 859

Additional provisions for doubtful debts amounting to $223 078 relate to premiums due from troubled banks.

16. Demonetisation fund                                                                                                     

  Reserve Bank of Zimbabwe                                      782 910                                               -
           

The Reserve Bank made available to the Corporation amounts to be utilised for the purpose of reimbursing 
depositors of failed banks who had Zimbabwe dollar balances in their accounts at the date of the introduction 
of multi currencies as substitute legal tender. Any unused balance from the advance as at 30 April 2016 will 
be returned to the Reserve Bank
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Leasing arrangement
During the year, the Corporation leased certain of its motor vehicles under a finance lease. The Corporation purchase 
the vehicles at a nominal value at the end of the lease period. The lease term is 1 year.

Interest rates underlying obligations under the finance lease arrangement are fixed at the contract 
date at 18% per annum. The effect of discounting is not material.

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

17. Finance lease liability                                                                  

2015 2014
US$ US$

Minimum lease payments PV of minimum lease 
payments

                                                                                                                          lease payments
Not later than one year (7 635) (7 468)
Not later than one year and not later than 5 years                                                                                        

-
-

Later than 5 years                                   -       -
                           (7 635)                                                                         (7 468)

Less: future finance charges 167                                                                                   
-                               

Present value of minimum lease payments (7 468) (7 468)

2015 2014
US$ US$

18. Trade and other payables
Leave pay provision               88 841 112 733
Other accruals 22 228 79 246

111 069 191 979
                           

2015 2014
US$ US$

19. Provision for protection payments
Opening balance 8 781 920 531 668
Current year reversal (19.2)                                                                                                             (1 472 585) -
Current year provision  - 8 433 943
Payments (2 544 084) (183 691)
Closing balance 4 765 251 8 781 920

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate fair value.
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19.        Provision for protection payments (continued)

19.1  The provision for protection payments represents the present value of the Directors best estimate of the 
future outflow of economic benefits that will be required under the Corporation’s obligations as set out in the Deposit 
Protection Corporation Act. Management annually assesses the performance of the banks using the CAMELS rating 
system. The estimate of the exposure is based on the number of depositors of distressed institutions at the end of 
the year. Distressed banks on the Reserve Bank Watch List with CAMELS rating of 4 and 5 were provided for except 
for government owed banks.  The provision for protection payment is based on a listing of individual depositors from 
troubled banks up to a maximum of US$500 per depositor. 

19.2  The reversal pertains to the reduction in insurable deposits in distressed institutions.

20.        Related party transactions 

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

2015
US$

                     2014
US$         

Key management compensation shown below:

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits                   767 145 883 670
Defined contribution plan 46 840 46 840

813 985 930 510

The Corporation has provided several of its key management personnel with short-term loans at a rate of 6%p.a. 
Further information has been set out below: 
                                                                                    2015                   2014
                                                                                                 US$                     US$
                        
Loans to key management                                                               28 548                 64 687
                              
21.  Financial instruments
 
21.1 Significant accounting policies

Details of significant accounting policies, including the recognition criteria, the basis for measurement and the basis 
on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each category of financial asset, financial liability and 
equity instrument are disclosed under the note in accounting policies.
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21.3 Interest rate risk
 

The Corporation is exposed to interest rate risk because the Corporation borrows funds at both fixed and 
floating interest rates. 

The Corporation’s exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the 
liquidity risk management section of this note

 
21.4 Liquidity risk  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will be unable to meet a financial commitment in any location 
or currency. This risk is minimized through the holding of cash balances and financial assets. In addition, 
detailed cash flow forecasts are regularly prepared and reviewed by management.  The cash needs of the 
Corporation are managed according to its requirements.
 

2015
US$

2014
US$

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 86 570 70 525
Gross money market funds carried at amortized 
cost                                        

14 564 971 10 694 179

Loans and receivables                              4 391 621 4 344 454
 
Financial liabilities

Trade and other payables 111 069 191 979
Finance lease liability 7 468 133 154
Demonetisation fund  782 910 -

21.2 Categories of financial instruments



Protecting Your Deposits

DPC Annual Report 2015

- 73 -Protecting Your Deposits

DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

21. Financial instruments (continued)

21.4 Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Corporation’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The 
table has been compiled based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest 
date on which the Corporation can be required to repay the liability. The cash flows include both the principal 
and interest payments. 

21  Financial instruments (continued)

21.5 Credit risk

Potential concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of short term cash investments and accounts receivable. 
Credit risk arises from the risk that a counter party may default or not meet its obligations timeously. The 
Corporation minimizes credit risk by ensuring that counterparties are banking institutions of the highest 
quality, that appropriate credit limits are in place for each counter party and that short term cash investments 
are spread amongst a number of different counterparties. Banking counterparty limits are reviewed annually 
by the Board.

Weighted 
average 

Effective 
Interest 

Rate
Less than 12

months 1 to 5 years +5 years Total
US$ US$ US$ US$

Non derivative financial 
instruments
2015
Interest bearing borrowings 18%             7 468                         -              -   7 468             
Trade and other payables n/a 111 069 - 111 069
Demonetisation fund n/a 782 910 - - 782 910

                                                901 447 - - 901 447
                                                               

 
2014
Interest bearing borrowings 18% 133 154 - - 133 154
Trade and other payables n/a 191 979 - - 191 979

325 133 - - 325 133
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DEPOSIT PROTECTION CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the year ended 31 December 2015 (continued)

     
The carrying amount of the financial assets represents the Corporation’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
without taking into consideration any collateral provided:

Maximum credit risk
                                                                                                             2015                              2014
                                                                                                              US$                                US$

Financial assets and other credit exposures
Other financial assets                                                                 14 575 270        10 706 507
Trade and other receivables                                                      4 391 621                  4 344 454
Cash and cash balance                                                                        86 570                70 525
                                                                                         ----------------                  ---------------
                                                                                          19 053 461                  15 121 486

                               
 22. Going concern

The Directors have assessed the ability of the Corporation to continue operating as a going concern and 
believe that the preparation of these financial statements on a going concern basis is still appropriate. 
However, the Directors believe that under the current economic environment a continuous assessment of the 
ability of the Corporation to continue to operate as a going concern will need to be performed to determine 
the continued appropriateness of the going concern assumption that has been applied in the preparation of 
these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2015, the Corporation’s current assets exceeded current liabilities by US$ 11 402 641 
(2014: US$ 6 014 433). Net current assets net of exposures relating to depositors of troubled institutions not 
provided for (refer note 4.2 and note 19) were US$ 5 285 277(2014: 182 232 net liability). 

In the event that the Corporation is faced with a huge pay-out which is in excess of available funds, there are 
three options that can be pursued individually or collectively as follows:
• In terms of the DPC Act [Chapter 24:29] Section 31, there is a provision to levy supplementary contributions 

from all banking institutions to fund the shortfall.
• In terms of the DPC Act, Second Schedule Paragraph 7, the Corporation has an ancillary power to 

borrow moneys for the purposes of the DPC Fund.
• In a systemic crisis, that is, a situation where a number of large banks fail at the same time and the fund 

level is inadequate even after invoking (1) and (2) above, then funding will be provided by the Ministry of 
Finance and Economic Development.
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NOTES
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Deposit Protection Corporation

Evelyn House, 26 Fife Avenue
Cnr Blakiston Street, Harare, 
Zimbabwe.

Telephone      : +263 250900-1
Fax                  : +263 252 337
Email              : info@dpcorp.co.zw
Website          : www.dpcorp.co.zw

A Member of the International Association of Deposit Insurers (IADI)


